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PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FORTY FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF

THE MEMBERS OF GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 26TH JULY 2023 AT 11:30 A.M. AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY, FOR THE PURPOSE OF TRANSACTING THE FOLLOWING
ITEMS OF BUSINESS:

GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. Toreceive, consider and adopt;

a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2023 along with the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon; and

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the financial
year ended 31st March 2023,

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2. To approve appointment of Mr. Jayendra Ratilal Shah (DIN: 00132613), as an
Independent Director of the Company.

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following resclution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 150 and 152 and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Schedule 1V of the
Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force), Articles of Association of the Company and in accordance with the intimation
given to the Reserve Bank of India, Mr. Jayendra Ratilal Shah (DIN: 00132613), who was
appointed by the Board of Directors, as an Additional Independent Director of the
Company with effect from 16t June, 2023, pursuant to the provisions of Scction 161(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Ariicles of Association of the Company and who holds
office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and who has submitted a declaration that
he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and is eligible
for appointment be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company
to hold office for a consecutive period of five (5) years commencing from 16t June, 2023
upto 15t June, 2028.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company has received necessary disclosures and
declarations from Mr. Jayendra Ratilal Shah, that he meets the criteria for Independence
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per RBI Master
Directions for Core Investment Companies.
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GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS
PRIVATE LIMITED

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company shall pay sitting fees to Mr. Jayendra Ratilal
Shah as determined by the board from time to time,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Beard of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things and to take such steps as may be necessary
and incidental to give effect to the foregoing resolution,”

Registered Office By Order of the Board
Unit No. 204, 2rd Floor, For Geetanjali Trading and Investments
Welspun House, Kamala City, Lower Private Limited
Parel (W}, Mumbai- 400013.
Contact:{022)400165500
Email:sec@geetanjaligroup.in

Date: 16% June, 2023 Ashwin S. Dani
Place: Mumbai Director (DIN:00009126)

K3 Reqd. Office : 204, Wetspun House, Kamala City, +9122 4001 6500
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel West, H corp@geetanjaligroup.in

Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India.

CIN : UB5990MH1979PTCO21049
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NOTES:-

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TQ ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY

TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMEER OF THE COMPANY.

THE PROXIES TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF
OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY (50) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE
NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY,

IN CASE A PROXY IS PROPOSED TO BE APPOINTED BY A MEMBER HOLDING
MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING
VOTING RIGHTS, THEN SUCH PROXY SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY
OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

Members attending the AGM are requested to bring with them the Attendance Slip
attached to the Annual Report duly filled in and signed and handover the same at the
venue of AGM. Members are requested to bring their copies of Annual Report while
attending the meeting,

Relevant documents referred to the accompanying Notice and the statements are open
for inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company between 11.00
am. to 1.00 p.m. on all the working days excluding Saturdays, Sundays & Public
Holidays during the business hours up to the date AGM and the same is also available
for inspection by the members at the meeting.

4. Route Map of venue of Annual General Meeting is annexed to the Notice.

m www.geetanjaligroup.in
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GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 2

Upon recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company appointed Mr. Jayendra Ratilal Shah
(DIN: 00132613) as an Additional (Non-Executive Independent Director) with effect from 16 June,
2023 in accordance with the provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Articles of
Association of the Company and other applicable laws. The Company has given necessary intimations
to Reserve Bank of India as per the Master Directions for Core Investment Companies. Pursuant to
the section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Jayendra Ratilal Shah haolds office only upto the 45t
Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Jayendra Shah is a Technocrat and entrepreneur having over 50 years of experience in
Plastics and Speciality Chemicals. He is a BSc (Hons), BSc (Tech) & MSc (Tech) in plastics. He is
the founder of JayVee Organics & Polymers Pvt. Ltd. Earlier, he served as a Director of Colortech
India Pvt. Ltd.,, Bluebell Polymers Pvt. Ltd. and Enteck Polymers Limited. Currently, he is an
Independent Director of Hitech Corporation Limited since 2013 and Goldstab Organics Pvt. Ltd.
He was recognized by Manjushree Technopack Ltd. for his cutstanding contribution to the
plastics packaging industry. He is also a board member of the Institute of Chemical Technology
(formerly UDCT). He has served as a Board member and Vice Chairman of the Indian Institute of
Packaging, Founder Chairman and President of Indian Plastic Institute, Vice President of
Polymer Processing Academy and Member of the Board of Central Institute of Plastic
Engineering & Technology (CIPET). He was conferred with the Distinguished Alumnus Award of
Institute of Chemical Technology (formerly UDCT), recipient of the Lifetime Achievement Award
from Indian Plastic Institute and Lifetime Achievement Award from Modern Plastic India
publication. He was also the Founder Treasurer of PlastIndia Foundation. Mr. Shah has a vast
and rich experience in the field of manufacturing and marketing of plastic preducts and
speciality and fine chemicals.

As he is a member of the Audit Committee of Hitech Corporation Limited, an equity listed
Company and subsidiary of our company, he has in depth knowledge and insight into Finance &
Investment functions.

He has confirmed that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of
Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and has given his consent to act as an Independent
Director along with all other necessary disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and RBI
regulations.

In the opinion of the Beard the considerable experience and expertise of Mr. Shah in various
professional areas would be of immense benefit to the Company.

The Board of Directors propose the appointment of Mr. Jayendra Ratilal Shah (DIN: 60132613)
as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for a tenure of 5 years pursuant to
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and recommend the Ordinary Resolution as set out in
Item No. 2 of this Notice.

Nene of the Directers, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 2, except
Mr. Jayendra Shah being the appointee.

www.geetanjaligroup.in




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS
PRIVATE LIMITED

F DIRECTOR POINTME IRED UUND RETA
STANDARD ON GENERAL MEETING (552):

Name of the Director Mr. Jayendra Ratilal Shah

DIN 00132613

Date of Birth 12th December 1933

Date of first appointment on | 16® June 2023

the board

Experience 50 years’ experience in Plastics and Speciality Chemicals.
Qualification BSc (Hons), BSc (Tech) & MSc (Tech) in Plastics

Terms and Conditions of Proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director for a period
Appointment of 5 years.

» Remuneration sought | Sitting fees of Rs. 35,000 was paid to Mr. Shah for attending 1=
out to be paid. board meeting during the current financial year.

s Remuneration last

drawn

Other Directorship 3

Membership/Chairmanships { Hitech Corporation Limited

of Committee Audit Committee - Member
Stakeholders Relationship Committee - Member
Nomination Remuneration Committee - Member
Corporate Social Responsibility - Chairman

Shareholding in the NIL

Company

Relationship with other No relation with any of the Directors, Managers, Key Managerial

Directors, Managers, Key Personnel (KMP).

Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Number of Board Meetings NA
attended during the year.

28 Regd. Office : 204, Welspun House, Kamala City, +9122 40016500

Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel West, cor| eetanjaligroup.in
Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India. B corp@gestanialigroup

CIN : UB5990MH1979PTC0O21049
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GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS

Venue: Unit No. 204, 2» Floor, Welspun House, Kamala City, S B Marg, Lower Parel West,

Mumbai 400013.

m Regd. Office : 204, Welspun House, Kamala City, 1) +9122 40016500

Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel West, corp@geetanjaligroup.in
Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, india. P ggeetanifa “ggmuppin
CIN : US5990MH1973PTCO21049 ) :
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GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS

PRIVATE LIMITED

NJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U65990MH1979PTC021049

Registered Office: Unit No. 204, 2~ Floor, Welspun House, Kamala City, S B Marg, Lower Parel West,

Folio No.
(To be presented at the en

I/We

Mumbai 400013,
ATTENDANCE SLIP
trance)

hereby record my/our presence at the 45% Annual

General Meeting of the Company at Unit Nao. 204, 2nd Floor, Welspun House, Kamala City, S B Marg,
Lower Parel West, Mumbai 400013, on Wednesday, 26t July 2023, at 11:30 a.m.

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS
MEETING VENUE,

ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE

Signature of the Member/Proxy

=

Form No, MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105{6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies

{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN
Name of the company
Registered office

: JU6S990MHI1979PTC021049

i (GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

¢ |Unit No. 204, 2= Floor, Welspun House, Kamala City, S B Marg, Lower Parel
West, Mumbai 400013,

Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folioc No. / Client ID:
DP ID:

Name of the Member(s):

I / We, being the member(s) of

appoint

1., Name:

shares of the above mentioned company, hereby

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature:

, or failing him /her

2. Name:

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature:

, or failing him /her

3. Name:

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature:

Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel West,
Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India,

CIN : U65890MH1979PTC021049

91 Regd. Office : 204, Welspun House, Karnala City,

3] +9122 4001 6500
E corp@geetanjaligroup.in
www.geetanjaligroup.in




PRIVATE LIMITED

GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 45t
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, 25% July, 2023 at 11:00 a.m. at
the Registered Office of the Company located at Unit No. 204, 2™ Floor, Welspun House, Kamala
City, § B Marg, Lower Parel West, Mumbai 400013 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of

such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolutio | Particulars of Resolution For Against
n No.
To receive, consider and adopt;
1. a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023
along with the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon; and
b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the
Company for the financial year ended 315t March, 2023.
2. To approve appointment of Mr. Jayendra Ratilal Shah (DIN:
00132613), as an Independent Director of the Company.
Signed this day of , 2023
Signature of the Shareholder
Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of first Signature of second Signature of third
Proxy holder Proxy holder Proxy holder

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited

at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.

&l Regd. Office : 204, Welspun House, Kamala City, K31 9122 40016500
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel West, cor petanialigroup.in
Mumbai - 400 013, Msharashtra, India. E P@geetanjatigroup.

www.geetanjaligroup.in
CiN : U65990MH1979PTCD21049




DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Forty Fifth Annual Report of the Company and the

GEETAN)ALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
U65990MH1979PTC021049

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

aundited financial statements for the Financial Year ended 31= March, 2023.

MP ERF E [Fi ial Hi
Particulars Standalone (Rs. In Lakhs) Consolidated (Rs. in lakhs)
2022-2023 | 2021-2022 | 2022-2023 2021-2022
Operating Revenue 9316.39 8540.95 79567.20 88138.91
Profit on sale of long term - - -
investments
Other Income - 346.44 360.82
Total Income 9316.39 8540.95 79913.64 88499.73
Total Expenditure 2119.17 2407.83 68573.56 75938.75
Profit/Loss Before Tax 7197.22 6133.22 11340.08 12560.98
Exceptional ltem - - 380.61 796.04
Profit/Loss before extra-ordinary 7197.22 6133.22 11720.69 13357.02
item
Extra Ordinary Items - - 23.05 -
Less: Provision for Tax
Current (1881.64) (1700.00) {3057.50) (3481.32)
Earlier Year (17.72) - (13.13) (2.07)
Deferred Tax - 54.75 110.44
MAT Credit entitlement - -
Profit/Loss After Tax 5297.86 4433.12 8704.81 10007.12
Less: Minority Interest - - (866.90) {1155.55)
Add: Share of Profit from Associates - - -
5297.86 4433.12 7837.91 8851.57
Net P/L attributable to Shareholders
Add: Balance at the Beginning of the (1986830) |  (23413.08) | (8628.80) (15846.78)
year
Less: Appropriations - - -
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserves (1059.57) {888.34) | (1059.57) (888.34)
Less: Capital Redemption Reserve - - (745.24)
Less: Reversal due Preference share - - -
redemption
Balance at the end of the year (15630.01) (19868.30) (1850.46) (8628.80)
Balance Carry Forward to Balance {15630.01) (19868.30) (1850.46) (8628.80)
Sheet
Earnings per share of face value of 372.67 311.84 551.35 622.66

Rs. 10 each (Basic & Diluted)
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OPERATIONS:
Stapdalone:

During the year under review Standalone Revenue from the operation increased to Rs. 9316.39
Lakhs as Compared to Rs. 8540.95 Lakhs in the previous financial year. The Company earned
Profit After Tax of Rs. 5297.86 lakhs as compared to the profit in the previous financial year of
Rs. 4433.12 Lakhs.

Consolidated

During the financial year 2022-23 the profits were reduced to Rs. 8704.81 Lakhs as compared
to profit of Rs. 10007.12 Lakhs in the previous financial year.

D END:

The Directors do not recommend any dividend on Equity Shares for the Financial Year ended
31st March, 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL:

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was Rs. 16,26,40,000/- divided into 62,60,000
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, 80,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10 each, 20,00,000 Preference
Shares of Rs.10 each, 150 Preference Shares of Rs.100 each and 250 Non - Cumulative-
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100 each. The paid-up equity share capital of the company
was Rs. 1,42,15,840/- divided into 14,21,584 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each as at 31st March
2023. During the financial year under review, there was no change in the Share Capital of the
Company.

NSFE H
During the year, there were no transfer of shares.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS. IF ANY. AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAS OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
TH PANY T THE FINANC]AL STATEMENTS RELATE AND DATE OF
THE REPORT:

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which has occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which
the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
During the year under review an amount of Rs. 1059.57 lakhs was transferred to Statutory Reserves.

ot "

The Company is registered as a Non-Deposit taking Systemically Important - Core Investment
Company (“CIC-ND-SI") under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 ("RBI Act’).
During the financial year under review, the Company has substantially complied with all the
applicable regulations notified by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company is continuing operation as “Non-Deposit taking Systemically Important Core
Investment Company” (“CIC-ND-SI"}. '
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NON- EP E EPQSITS:

During the Year, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). There was no deposit outstanding as on March 31, 2023.

As the Company is registered as “Non-Deposit taking Systemically Important Core Investment
Company” {“CIC-ND-SI"), it is prohibited from accepting Deposits under RBI guidelines.

ERVA F ENERGY HN Y ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARN
AND OUTGO:

Your Company is engaged in the business of holding securities and investments in the form of
Shares, warrants, debentures and other Securities. Its activities do not involve any expenditure on
Technology and Research and Development; therefore, the other particulars as per the Rule 8 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not required to be submitted. The Company is not energy
intensive. However, every effort is made to ensure optimum use of energy by using energy-
efficient computers, processes and other office equipment. Constant efforts are made through
regular/ preventive maintenance and upkeep of existing electrical equipment to minimize
breakdowns and loss of energy.

The Company is continuously making efforts for induction of innovative technologies and
techniques required for the business activities. Foreign Exchange earnings and Foreign Exchange
Outgo have remained nil during the year.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Directors

As on 31st March 2023, Mr. Ashwin S. Dani (DIN: 00009126), Mrs. Ina A. Dani (DIN: 00053695),
Mr. Harish N. Motiwalla (DIN: 00029835) and Mr. Bharat Gosalia (DIN: 09169451) were the
Directors of the Company. There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors
during the year.

Mr. Jayendra Ratilal Shah was appointed as an Additional Independent Director w.e.f 16% June
2023 subiject to the approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Manggerial I KMP

During the year under review Mr. Mukesh Desai, Principal Officer & Chief Financial Officer and
Mr. Prabhu Chettiyar, Company Secretary were Key Managerial Personnel under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules issued thereunder. Subsequently, Mr. Prabhu Chettiyar,
Company Secretary resigned from the services of the Company with effect from 30t August 2022.

Mrs. Namita Tiwari was appointed as a Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f 1stJune 2023.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2023:

During the year under review, the Board of Directors met 5 (Five) times viz;

Sr. No. Date of the Meeting
1. 31st May, 2022
2. 30% August, 2022
3. 234 September, 2022
4, 18th November, 2022
5. 23rd February, 2023
Sl. | Name of the Director DIN No. of Meetings| No, of Maeetings
No. Held attended
1) | Ashwin Suryakant Dani 00009126 |5 5
2} | Ina Ashwin Dani 00053695 [ 5 5
3} | Harish Narendra Motiwalla 00029835 | 5 5
4) | Bharat Ishwarlal Gosalia 09169451 | S 5

Following are the various Committees formed by the Company in accordance with the RBI
notification no. RBI/2019-20/88 DOR. NBFC {PD) CC No. 102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4*
November, 2020

1. Audit Committee

During the year the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted an Audit Committee vide
its Board Resolution dated 23 February 2023 pursuant to the requirements of Scale based
Regulations issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI}.

The Committee was re-constituted at the Board Meeting held on 16t June 2023 to induct Mr.
Jayendra Shah as a Member of the Committee.

Constitution of the Audit Committee is as hereunder;

Sr. [ Name  of  the | Member of | Capacity No. Meetings No. of
No. | Director/Member | Committee since (i.e.Executive/Non- Shares held
Executive/Chairman in NBFC
JjPromoter/Nominee
/Independent
Held | Attended
1 Mr. Harish Motiwalla | 23-02-2023 Independent Director | 0 0 Nil
2. | Mrs. Ina Dani 23-02-2023 Non-executive 0 0 1
promoter Director
3 Mr. Bharat Gosalia 23-02-2023 Non-executive o 0 Nil
Director
4 *Mr. Jayendra Shah 16-06-2023 Additional NA | NA Nii
Independent Director

*Inducted as a Member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. 16™ June 2023




GEETAN]JALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23
U65990MH1979PTC021049

As the Committee was constituted at the end of the year, there was no meeting held during the
year.

2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC)

During the year the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Nomination &
Remuneration Committee vide its Board Resolution dated 23 February, 2023 pursuant to the
requirements of Scale based Regulations issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

The Committee was re-constituted at the Board Meeting held on 16% June 2023 to induct Mr.
Jayendra Shah as a Member of the Committee.

Constitution of the NRC Committee is as hereunder;

Sr.| Name of the | Member of | Capacity No, Meetings No. of Shares
No| Director/Member Committee (i.e.Executive/Non- held in NBFC
since Executive/Chairman/Pro
moter/Nominee/Independ
ent
Held | Attended

1 | Mr. Harish Motiwalla | 23-02-2023 Independent Director 0 0 Nil
2 | Mrs. Ina Dani 23-02-2023 Non-executive promoter | 0 0 1

Director
3 | Mr. Bharat Gosalia 23-02-2023 Non-executive Director 0 0 Nil
4 | *Mr. Jayendra Shah 16-06-2023 Additional Independent | NA [ N.A Nil

Director

*[nducted as a Member of the Nomination Remuneration Committee w.e.f. 16 June 2023

As the Committee was constituted at the end of the year, there was no meeting held during
the year.

3. RiskManagement Committee (RMC):

The Risk Management Committee consisted of Principal Officer and Heads of various verticals,
who are responsible for evaluating the overall risks faced by the Company including liquidity
risk.

During the year under review, the Committee was reconstituted to align its constitution as per
the applicable Regulations by inducting Mr, Harish Motiwalla & Mr. Bharat Gosalia - Directors of
the Company

Following is the composition of the RMC as on 31% March, 2023.:

Risk Management Committee :

Sr. No. | Name of the Member Designation Head/Member
1. #Mr. Harish Motiwalla Independent Director Head
2. #Mr, Bharat Gosalia Non-Executive Director Member
3 Mr. Mukesh Desai CFO & Principal Officer Member

Inducted w.e.f 237 February 2023.

During the year, four RMC meetings were held on the following dates
27t May 2022, 29% August 2022, 17 November 2022 and 22 February 2023.
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Sr. Name of the Member No. of Meeting| Meetings
No. Held Attended
1. | Mr. Mukesh Desai 4 4
2. | *Mr. Sagar Doshi 4 4
3. | Mrs. Rucha Gadgil 4 4

*Appointed w.e.f. 18% November 2022

The ALCO Committee is responsible for ensuring adherence to risk tolerance/ limits set by the
Board as well as implanting the liquidity risk management strategy of the Company.

During the year the Committee was reconstituted, and the composition of the ALCO Committee is
as hereunder:

Asset Liability Management Committee:
Sr. No. Name of the Member Designation Head/Member
1. Mr. Mukesh Desai CFO & Principal Officer Head
2. *Mr. Prabhu Chettiyar Company Secretary Member
3. **Mr. Sagar Doshi Senior manager, Accounts & Audit Member
4. Mrs. Rucha Gadgil Manager Accounts Member

*Resigned w.ef. 30t August, 2022.
**Appointed w.e.f. 18" November, 2023

During the year four ALCO meetings were held on the following dates
27th May 2022, 30t August 2022, 17th November 2022 and 22 February 2023.

Sr. Name of the Member No. of Meeting Meetings
No. Held Attended
1. [ Mr. Mukesh Desai 4 4
2. | *Mr. Sagar Doshi 4 4
3. | Mrs. Rucha Gadgil 4 4

*Appointed w.ef. 18% Nocember 2022

5. Group Risk Management Commitiee (GRMC):

As per the Master Directions of RBI for CICs the parent CIC in the group or the CIC with the
largest asset size, in case there is no identifiable parent CIC in the group, shall constitute a
Group Risk Management Committee {GRMC). Since there is only one CIC in the group, the
provision for constitution of GRMC was not applicable to the Company and therefore the
Committee was disbanded w.e.f. 18 November, 2023.

During the year 3 GRMC meetings were held on the following dates 315t May, 2022, 30t August,
2022 and 18" November, 2023.

Sr. Name of the Member No. of Meeting Held | Meetings Attended
No.

1. | Mr. Harish Motiwala 3 3

2. | Mr. Bharat Gosalia 3 3

3. | **Mr. Prabhu Chettiyar 3 2

*

*

Resigned w.e.f. 30% August, 2022
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AUDITORS:

At the Annual General Meeting held on 30" November 2021, M/s, Khandhar Mehta & Shah were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the period of 3 (Three) years, which shall
begin from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2021 i.e. from FY
2021-22, till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024 i.e. FY
2023-24.

Accordingly, your Company has received the necessary certificate from M/s. Khandhar Mehta &
Shah, Chartered Accountants confirming that they satisfy the criteria provided under Section 141
of the Companies Act, 2013 and are not disqualified from continuing as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company.

A RS’ RT:

The auditors’ report for the year ended on 31st March 2023 does not contain any qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks.

There were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors under provisions of Section 143(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

B RIE NT V' RE A TE ANI

Subsidiari

As on March 31, 2023, Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited (HSSL) is the wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company and Hitech Corporation Limited is a listed subsidiary of the Company.
Associates

The Company does not have any Associate Company.

Joint Ventures

The Company does not have any Joint Venture Companies.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3)} of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
prepared consolidated financial statements of the Company with all its subsidiaries viz. Hitech
Specialities Solutions Limited & Hitech Corporation Limited which forms part of the Annual Report.
A statement containing salient features of the financial statements and other necessary
information of the subsidiary companies in the format prescribed under FORM-AQOC-1 is included
in the Annual Report as Annexure ‘A",

INT AL FINANCIAL CONTRO

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the
design or operation was observed.

PA LA F L NTE R 1 T™ ND ECTI HE

The Company is registered as Core Investment Company with RBI. Thus, the provision of Section
186 of the Act except sub-section (1) is not applicable to the Company. '
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During the year the Company has purchased 2600 equity shares of Resins & Plastics Limited at a
rate of Rs. 375 per share aggregating to Rs. 9,75,000/- during RPL's Buyback process.

ECT ' RE IBILTY ST, ME
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 the Directors state that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31t March, 2023, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Companies Act,
2013 had been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

(b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 315t March, 2023 and of the profit and loss of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

(¢} The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis.

(e) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

(f) The Directors have laid down proper internal financial control and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and operating effectively.

1SK AGE TP

The Company has laid dewn a Risk Management Policy, defining Risk profiles involving Strategic,
Technological, Operational, Financial, Liquidity, Organisational, Legal and Regulatory risks within a
well-defined framework. The Risk Management Policy acts as an enabler of growth for the
Company by helping its businesses to identify the inherent risks, assess, evaluate, and monitor
these risks continuously and undertake effective steps to manage these risks.

The Risk Management Committee consist of the members as mentioned hereinabove were
appointed in accordance with the requirements provided RBI notification no. RB1/2019-20/88
DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4% November 2019 to review the robustness
of the Risk Management Policy. The periodical update on the risk management practices and
mitigation plan of the Company are to be placed before the Board of Directors. The Board
periodically shall review updates and findings and suggest areas where internal controls and risk
management practices can be improved.

RE RA

In view of no financial instruments issued by the company or outstanding at any time during the
year requiring Credit Rating, the company has not obtained credit rating.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the Annual Return in the prescribed
format is available at the website of the company at
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https://geetanjaligroup.in /digplay /investor. SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE

REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s.
Robert Pavrey & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the Company.
The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is attached as “Annexure - B",

RTI F EMP ES:

As your company is not a listed company, Rule 5{2) of the Companies {(Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 is NOT APPLICABLE.

TICULA NT ARRA NT. ELATE TIES:

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transactions with
related parties which were not in the ordinary course of business or not on arms’ fength basis. The
Company had not entered in to any transaction with related party that could be considered as
material. The related party transactions are disclosed under the Notes to Financial Statements for
the year 2022-23.

The Board of Directors of the Company has formulated and adopted a well defined Related Party
Policy which governs all the related party transactions of the Company.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1), as
prescribed in Form AQC - 2 under the Companies Act, 2013, is appended as Annexure - C.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, [E ANY:

There is no change in the nature of business carried on by the Company. The Company has not
changed the class of business in which the Company has an interest.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY:

The Company does not have prescribed number of employees to frame the policy on Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace pursuant to the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Woman at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013. However, as good corporate
governance practice the Company follows the strict guidelines to protect the rights of woman at
workplace..

The company did not receive any such complaints during the year.

TE RESP ILITY [* "):
The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. The
Company is an NBFC (CIC) registered Company, and its major income is from dividend received by it
which is exempted while calculating the net profit of the Company for the purpose of eligibility

requirements for CSR spendings. Therefore, pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was NIL.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Your Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2023:
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a) has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings.

b) There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts and
tribunals impacting the going concern status of the Company's operations in future.

¢) The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting
or otherwise.

DI P Bl:
A. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Corporate governance Report forms part of this Board's Report as Annexure D.

B. Other RBI Disclosures;

i, List of group entities that were not consolidated in the Consolidated Financial

Statement
a. Asian Pai imi
Name of the entity Asian Paints Limited
Type of business Manufacturer of Paints, Adhesives and other
decorative products
Debt-equity ratio NIL
Asset size INR 22,52,954 lakhs
Profitability of last two years FY 2021-22 - INR 3134.71 crores
FY 2022-23 - INR 4100.18 crores
Nature and type of exposure on the entity Equity Holding of 4.77%

Total exposure of the CIC towards non- | INR 1,16,735 lakhs
financial business

Loans and Advances to the firms/Companies | NIL
in which Directors are interested

Investments by the loanee of the CIC in the | NIL
shares of parent company and group
companies
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ii. Resinsan imi
Name of the entity Resins and Plastics Limited
Type of business Manufacturer of Synthetic Resins
Asset Size INR 12,021 Lakhs as on 31st March 2023

Debt-equity ratio

NIL

Profitability of last two years

FY 2021-22 - INR 11.82 Crores

FY 2022-23 - INR 981.42 Crores

Nature and type of exposure on the entity Equity Holding of 8.08%
Total exposure of the CIC towards non- | INR 244 lakhs
financial business
Loans and Advances to the firms/Companies | NIL
in which Directors are interested
Investments by the loanee of the CIC in the | NIL
shares of parent company and group
companies
iii, Gujar imij
Name of the entity Gujarat Organics Limited
Type of business Currently Investment Company
Asset Size INR 15,772 Lakhs as on 31st March 2022

Debt-equity ratio

NIL

Profitability{Loss) of last two years

FY 2020-21 - INR 50.28 Crores

FY 2021-22 - INR 22.76 Crores

Nature and type of exposure on the entity

Equity Holding of 0.50%

Total exposure of the CIC towards non-
financial business

INR 0.04 Lakhs

Loans and Advances to the firms/Companies
in which Directors are interested

NIL

Investments by the loanee of the CIC in the
shares of parent company and group
companies

NIL
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Registration/ licence/ authorisation, by
whatever name called, obtained from other
financial sector regulators

Penalties imposed by RBI and other
regulators including strictures or directions
on the basis of inspection reports or other
adverse findings

Z
[l

If the auditor has expressed any modified
opinion(s) or other reservation(s) in his
audit report or limited review report in
respect of the financial results of any
previous financial year or quarter which has
an impact on the profit or loss of the
reportable period, with notes on -

(i) How the modified opinion(s) or other
reservation(s) has been resolved; or

(ii) If the same has not been resolved, the
reason thereof and the steps which the CIC
intends to take in the matter.

DGE T

Your Directors wish to express their appreciation and gratitude to all the employees at all levels for
their hard work, dedication and cooperation during the year.

Your Directors wish to express their sincere appreciation for the excellent support and co-

operation extended by the Company’s shareholders, customers, bankers, suppliers, regulatory and
government authorities and all other stakeholders.

On behalf of the Board
For Geetanjali Trading & Investments Private Limited

& W
Ashwin S. Dani Ina A. Dani
Director (DIN: 00009126) Director (DIN: 00053695)

Place: Mumbai
Date; 16% June 2023
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

ANNEXURE ¢’

(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies {Accounts] Rules,

2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length transactions under third
proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis: NIL

a)

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

b)

Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transactions

)

Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

d)

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions
including the value, if any

e)

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or
transactions

f)

Date(s) of approval by the Board

g)

Amount paid as advances, if any

h}

Date on which (a) the special resolution was passed in general
meeting as required under first proviso to Section 188 of the

Companies Act, 2013

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm'’s length basis:

(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b} | Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transactions

(c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

{d) } Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any

(e) | Date(s) of approval by the Board

(f) | Amount paid as advances, if any

For Geetanjali Trading & Investments Private Limited

AT _fe Ao

e
Ashwin's. Dani Ina A. Dani
Director (DIN: 00009126) Director (DIN: 00053695)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16% June 2023
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ANNEXURE D

CORPOTATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (Paragraph C of Schedule V - Annual Report) as amended from time to time, specifies disclosures to be
made in the section on the corporate governance of the Annual Report. With respect to the corporate
governance report, non-listed NBFCs are also required to make certain disclosures in accordance with the
requirement of Scale based Regulations issued by RBI (SBR Regulations) . Accordingly, as required being a
Non-listed NBFC (CIC) following disclosures are being made under the corporate governance section of the
annual report.

L Composition of the Board

Sr. | Name of the ;| Director | Capacity DIN No. Beard { No. of Othernl Remuneration No. Of Shares
No. | Director since {i.e.Executive /Non- Meetings Directorships held in and
Executive/Chairman Convertible
/Promoter/Nomince instruments
/independent held in the
NBFC
Held | Atte Salary & | Sitting Com
nded Other Fees miss
Compens ion
ation
1. Mr. Ashwin | 1979 Chairman/Promote | Q009126 5 5 7 6,00,000 - NIL
§. Dani r/Mon-Executive /pm
2. Mrs. Ina A | 1979 Promoter f Noen- | 00053695 5 5 4 - 35000/- - NIL
Dani Executive per
meeting
3. Mr. Harish ¥. | 2017 [ndependent 00029835 5 5 7 - 35000/- - NiL
Motiwalla per
meeting
4. Mr. Bharat [. | 2021 Non-Executive 09169451 5 5 - 4,040,000 - NIL
{iosalia /-pm

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year.

Sr. No| MName aof the Director

Capacity

(i.e.Executive/Nan-
Executive/Chairman/Promote
r/Nominee/Independent

Nature of Change (Resignation,

Appointment)

Effective Date

No Ch

Where an independent director resigned before expiry of her/ his term, if yes, the reasons for resignation as piven by

her/him..

No Director resigned before expiry of the term,

Details of any relationship amongst the directors inter-se shall be disclosed.

Mr. Ashwin Dani & Mrs. Ina Pani, Non-Executive promoter Directors are related to each other as spouse. No other Directors
have any inter-se relationship amongst them.

II. Committees of the Board and their composition
1. AUDIT COMMITTEE;

A

As Reported above in the Board’s Report
3. EMENT :
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ES BEI: ;]:1 : ! !]: pye ]-“ :]]E BE El:d’i B:IEEII
4. RI EMENT COMMITTEE (RMC):
E g B EI: “:j : j a]] pye ”: t]] o B: il:d’i BEI: “1
II1. ENE BODY

Give details of the date, place and special resolutions passed at the General Body Meetings.

Sr. Type of Meeting {Annuai/Extra Ordinary) Date & Place Special Resolutions passed
No.

AGM 30t September, 2022 NIL

IV.  Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013

Give details and reasons of any default in compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013,
including with respect to compliance with accounting and secretarial standards. NIL

V. Details of penalties and strictures

NBFCs should disclose details of penalties or stricture imposed on it by the Reserve Bank or any other
statutory authority. NIL

A. Breach of covenant

NBFCs shall disclose all instances of breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued.
NIL

B. Di i lassification an

NBFCs shall disclose details of divergence as per the table given below, if either or both of the following
conditions are satisfied: NOT APPLICABLE

a) the additional provisioning requirements assessed by RBI (or National Housing Bank (NHB) in the case
of Housing Finance Companies) exceeds 5 percent of the reported profits before tax and impairment
loss on financial instruments for the reference period, or

b) the additional Gross NPAs identified by RBI/NHB exceeds 5 per cent of the reported Gross NPAs for the
reference period.

Sr. No. Particulars Amount

1) Gross NPAs as on March 31, 20XX* as reported by the NBFC

2) Gross NPAs as on March 31, 20XX as assessed by the Reserve Bank of
India/ NHB

3) Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1)

4) Net NPAs as on March 31, 20XX as reported by the NBEC

5] Net NPAs as on March 31, 20XX as assessed by Reserve Bank of India/ NHB

6) Divergence in Net NPAs [5-4)

7 Provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 20XX as reported by the NBFC

8) Provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 20XX as assessed by Reserve Bank of
India/ NHB

9) Divergence in provisioning (8-7)

10) Reported Profit before tax and impairment loss on financial instruments
for the year ended March 31, 20XX

11) Reported Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 20XX

12) Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31,
20XX after considering the divergence in provisioning




KHANDHAR
MEHTA &
SHAH

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”}.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Cpinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (5As) specified under section 143({10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financia! statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors report but does not include the

standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

3rd Floor, Devpath Complex,

B/h. Lal Bungalow, Off C.G. Road,

Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 006.

Phone : +91 79 6631 5450/ 51 /527153,
+91 79 2646 1526,

E-mail : kms@kmsindia.in
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financia! statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard, based on the
draft Directors Report provided to us.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s

report that includes our opinion. Reasgnabie assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.




aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of india in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of Companies the Act, 2013, we give in
Annexure ‘A’ a statement an the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by section 143 (3} of the Act, we report, that:

(a}

{b)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in Annexure ‘B’. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements.

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197{16}) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the provisions of section 197 of the Act
are not applicable to the Company.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
¢

of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, we further report that:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which

-

there were any material foreseeable losses.



iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a)} The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
{"Intermediaries”}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (a) and {b}
above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  As per the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, no dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
Accordingly, compliance with the provisions of Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

vi.  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023 and accordingly, reporting
under Rule 11(g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For, KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH
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CA. Gauta ehta N

PARTNER v/
M. No.: 112626

UDIN: 23112626BGSHIE7905
Mumbai; June 16, 2023




Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in Para 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our Report to the
Members of the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Statement on Matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020

1 |a (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(b) The Company does not have any intangible asset. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(a}{B) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

b { The Company has a regular program for physicai verification of fixed assets by which all the fixed
assets are verified at the end of the financial year. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢ | According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records
produced before us, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

d | The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

e | According to the information and explanations given to us, representation obtained from
Management and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings
have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023, for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 {as amended
in 2016) and rukes made thereunder.

2 The Company does not have any inventory, accordingly, paragraph 3 (i} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
3 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not provided any

guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms and limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the Company has investments
in two subsidiaries.

a | The Company is a Core Investment Company — Non-Deposit Taking — Systematically Important {CIC-
ND-S1), accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(iii) (a} of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

b | The investment made by the Company are prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company. Further, the Company has not provided any guarantees or securities or loans and
advances in the nature of loans and guarantees which are prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of
the Company.

¢ | The Company has not provided any loans and advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly, the
provisions of paragraph 3(iii) (c) of the Order relating to repayment of principal and repayment of
interest are not applicable to the Company.

d | The Company has not provided any loans and advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly, the
provisions of paragraph 3(iii) (d) of the Order relating to overdue amounts more than ninety days
are not applicable to the Company.

e | The Company is a Core investment Company — Non-Deposit Taking — Systematically Important {CIC-
ND-S1}. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3{iii) (e} of the Order relating to loan or advance in
the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or
fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given are not applicable to the Company.

f | The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly, the
provisions of paragraph 3(iii) (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. - AEN

T Ny




According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loan to
parties covered under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company has not given any
loans or guarantees and being an investment company, its investments are exempted under section
186 [11) (b), hence, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Act, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits, from the public as per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India, to which the
provisions af sections 73 to 76 or any other applicable provisions of the Act and the rules framed
there under apply. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 143 (1)
of the Companies Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3
{vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the
Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues
with the appropriate authorities, wherever applicable. According to the information and
explanations given ta us, there are no undisputed dues which have remained outstanding as at the
end of the financial year, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us, there are
no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise and Value Added Tax or Cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, there are no transactions that are not recerded in the books of account which
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
tncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Government or any Government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has availed term loans during the year which were applied for the
purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the
year for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies.

10

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting on clause 3{x}{b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




11

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

No report under sub-section {(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed in form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of the audit report.

As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

12

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

13

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on cur
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with Section 188 of the Act, wherever applicable. The details of such related party transactions have
been disclosed in the Standaione Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards. Since this is Private Limited Company, provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not
applicable.

14

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
the nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures,

15

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records
produced before us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause {xv} of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

16

The Company is registered under section 45 — 1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a Core
Investment Company — Non-Deposit Taking - Systematically Impaortant (CIC-ND-SI).

The Company has obtained a Certificate of Registration {CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per
the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 for conducting activities relating to Non-Banking Financial
Activities

The Company is registered Under section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of india Act 1934, as a Core
Investment Company — Non-Deposit Taking - Systematically Important {CIC-ND-51).

i. The company is a Core Investment Company — Non-Deposit Taking - Systematically Important
(CIC-ND-SI) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India

ii. The company has obtained registration with RBI.

iii. The company has fulfilled the required criteria of a CIC

The Group has only one CIC as part of the Group,

17

The company has not incurred any cash loss in the current financial year as well as in the
immediately preceding financial year.

18

There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

19

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Beard of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based an
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a pericd of one year from the balance sheet date, wiii get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.




20 According to the information and explanations give to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3{xx} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For, KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH

CHARTERED Accoym
i 0. 125515 SN
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UDIN: 23112626BGSHIE7905
Mumbai; June 16, 2023



Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in Para 2 {f) under ‘Report on Qther Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of the Company on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements of
GEETANIJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2023 in
conjuncticn with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internai financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to the standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Interiia! Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial infermation, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone financial statements based on cur audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”}
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial




standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evajuating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to these standalone
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to these standalone financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to these
standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of these standalone financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to these standalone
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of out information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company

has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone




to these standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For, KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

PARTNER
M. No.: 112626

UDIN: 23112626BGSHIE7905
Mumbai; June 16, 2023



GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : Ue5990MH1979PTC021049
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
[INR in lakhs]
Particulars MNote No, As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) |Shareholders’ Funds
{a) Share Capital 3 142.16 142.16
{b} Reserves and Surplus 4 1,01,161.14 95,863.28
1,01,303.30 96,005.44
{2) JNon-Current Liabilities .
{a) Long Term Borrowings 5 - -
{b} Long-Term Provisions 6 4.41 6.15
441 6.15
{3) []Current Liabilities
{a) Short Term Barrowings 7 22,895.10 29,000.00
{b) Other Current Liabilities 8 126.86 173.91
{c) Short Term Provisions 9 5.93 4,09
23,027.89 29,178.00
1,24,335.60 1,25,189.59
11, JASSETS
{1) |Non-Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 10 34.57 36.76
{b} Non-Current Investments 11 18,382.47 18,372.72
{c) Long-Term Loans and Advances 12 140.05 157.79
{d} Other Non-Current Assets 13 0.69 0.68
18,557.78 18,567.95
{2} |Current Assets
{a) Current Investments 14 1,04,627.70 1,04,627.70
{b) Cash and Cash Equivelents 15 1,120.90 1,966.28
{c) Short Term Loans & Advances 16 0.44 1.33
{d) Other Current Assets 17 28.78 26.33
1,05,777.82 1,06,621.64
1,24,335.60 1,25,189.59
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report attached For and on behalf of Board of
Khandhar Mehta & S)‘la? ; { . Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Chartered AcCOUNEITIY, -l 7 -,
Registration No. ! . '
edeiod? 2odArt A A
DS -‘;::.H - _/ /
/SL ! I
autam Mehta \A : Ashwin 5. Dani Ina A. Dani
Partner - Director Director
Membership No. - 112626 DIN: 00009126 DIN: 00053695
Ayrsaser
Mukesh Desai Namita Tiwari
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 16th June, 2023 Date: 16th June, 2023




GEETANIJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN : U65990MH1979PTC021049

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

[INR in lakhs]
- For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note No.
ot 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
1 Revenue from operations 18 9,316.39 8,540.95
2 Total Income 9,316.39 8,540.95
3 |Expenses:
Employee Benefits Expense 19 75.35 77.42
Finance costs 20 1,828.30 2,177.87
Depreciation & Amortization expense 21 4.14 12.63
Other expenses 22 211.38 135.91
Total Expenses 2,119.17 2,407.83
4  fProfit before extraordinary items and tax {2-3} 7,197.22 6,133.12
5 |Extraordinary [tems - -
6 [|Profit before tax (4-5) 7,197.22 6,133.12
7 ITax expense:
- Current Tax (1,881.64) (1,700.00}
- Earlier years {17.72) -
g [Profit after tax {6-7) 5,297.86 4,433.12
9 |Earnings per equity share: 23
{1) Basic (in INR} 372.67 311.84
{2) Diluted (in INR} 372.67 311.84
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached
Khandhar Mehta & Shah

Chartered Accounta }5 DATIN
Registration No. 125 ‘_tZW"f,\
"~ N
et 1

autam Mehta

Partner . o
Membership No, - 112626

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th June, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of
Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

-
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Ashwin S. Dani
Director
DIN: 00009126
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Mukesh Desai
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai

ina A. Dani
Girector
DIN: 00053695
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GEETANJALL TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U65930MH1979PTL021049
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023
[iNR in lakhs)
For the year ended 31st March, |- For the year ended 31st March;
_an : 022 B
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES -

Met Profit before tax and extracrdinary item 1,197.22 §,133,12
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 4.14 12.63
Loss on sale f redemption of long term investments - 19.19
Operating Profit before working capital changes 2.201.36 6,164.94
Adjustments for changes in :
Loans and advances 0.89 0.30
Current assets : (2.46} 77.29
Non current liabilities and provisians (1.74) {7.68)
Current liabilities and provisions [46.21) {19.15)
Cash Generated from operations 7,151.84 5,215.70
Income Tax Paid [Net] (1,880.62} {1,700.00]
Net Cash generoted from operating octivities 5,271.22 4,515.70

8. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment [1.95} (4.88)

Proceads from redemption of Preference Shares - 715,70

Fixed Deposit Placed [22.30} {366.73)

Fixed deposits Matured 340.00 550.00 B

Purchase of Shares 9.75} -

Net Cash generated irom Investing Activities 306.00 298.09

€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -

Proceeds from borrowings 8,395.10 13,000.00

Kepayment of borrowings {14,500.00) {18,603.52)

Net Cash fused in) Financing Activities (6,104.90) [5,603.52)

Net (Decreoase} in Cash and Cosh Equivalents {527.68) {185.73)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 527.82 T17.55

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year .14 527.82
|Nptes:

1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprises of :

Balances with bank in current account 0.14 68.72
Balances with bank in deposit account - 455.00
Cash in hand - 0.10

0.14 527.82

2 The above statement of cash flows has bean prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set outin AS 3 - 'Cash Flow Statements’.

3 Since the Company is a core investment company, purchase and sale of investments have been considered as part of "Cash flow from investing]
activities' and finance cost of INR 1,828.30 lakhs {previous year : INR 2,177.87 lakhs), interest earned (net) - INR 81.95 Iakhs [Previous period -
INR 105.39 lakhs) and dividend earned of INR 5,234.44 lakhs [Previous year - INR 8,435.56 lakhs} have been considered as part of 'Cash flow|
from operating activities'.

4 Direct taxes paid is treated as arising from operating activities and is not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

5 Figures in brackets are cutflows/ deductions. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary.

As per our report attached For and on behalf of Board of
Khandhar Mehta &;h&h WAL ‘, - Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Chartered Accaun}an‘ts‘:"‘—“'

Reglstration No. 228500W ‘o
fh sl el L}
i [ .10 V' ?
2]
‘UIU,II-E(,_) ! ﬂ‘gw ’%‘S,D-—”
N Ashwin 5. Dani Ina A, Dani
Membarship No: - 112626 ', Director Director
DIN: 00009126 DIN: 00053695
ﬂM"J—'L’""""' b, ,
._,..-'.'-'
Mukesh Desai Namita Towari
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Piace; Mumbai

Date: 16th June, 2023 Date: 16th June, 2023




NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2023

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited (the “Company”) is a private limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, The Company has got classified as a Core Investment Company —
Non-Deposit Taking — Systemically Important (CIC-ND-SI) and has been granted registration on May 24, 2017. The Company is
engaged in the business of investments in shares and securities. The Company forms part of the Middle Layer as per the Framework
for Scale Based Regulation for Non-Banking Financial Companies, based on notification RBI/2021-22/112
DOR.CRE.REC.No0.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated 22nd QOctober 2021, with effect from st October 2022.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Accounting:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian
GAAP), The Compeny has prepared these financial statements under the historical cost convention on accrual basis of accounting to
comply in all material respects with the accouming standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)
read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, to the extent applicable and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of
India (RB1} for Core Investment Companies.

The classification of assets and liabilities of the Company into current or non-current is based on the Company's normal operating
cyele and other criterion specified in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act. 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

b} Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities on the date of financial
statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. Management believes that the estimates used in
the preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from the estimates.

¢} Revenue Recognition:
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established. Interest income is recognised on the time

proportion basis.

d) Property, Plant and Equipment:

The property, plant and equipment are stated at cost (net of cenvat credit, wherever applicable) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. The cost includes cost of acquisition including taxes, duties and other identifiable direct expenses incurred
to bring the assets to their present location and condition. Tnterest on borrowed funds attributable up to the period assets are put to use
is included in the cost of qualifying assets. Freehold land (Plot at Gujarat) is measured at cost and is not depreciated.

¢) Depreciation ;
Depreciation is provided on all assets under written down value method over the useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule I to
the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful life over which assets are depreciated are as follows: -

Assets Useful life
Buildings 60 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computer 3 years
Plant & Machinery 15 years
Motor Car 8 years




f} Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments
are made are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

Long term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long-term investments is made only if such a
decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the management.

Current investments for each category shall be valued at Jower of cost or market value and the resultant decline, if any, is charged to
revenue.

Unquoted preference shares in the nature of current investments shall be valued at cost or face value, whichever is lower.

g) Loans and advances

Loans and advances given are classified under four categories i.e. (i) Standard Assets, (ii) Sub-standard Assets, (iii) Doubtful Assets
and (iv) Loss Assets as per directions issued by the RBI.

Provision on loans and advances is made as per the provisioning requirements mentioned in the directions issued by the RBI.

h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary costs, amortization of discounts related to borrowings and foreign
exchange to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. Borrowing costs that are directly atiributable to the
acquisition or constructien of qualifying asset are capitalised as part of such asset till such time that the asset is ready for its intended
use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the peried in which they are incurred.

i) Employee Bencfits

(i) Short term employee benefits;

Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year
in which the related service is rendered.

(ii}  Post-employment benefits:

a. Defined Contribution Plan:

Employee benefit in the form of Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution plans and the contributions are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contribution to the respective funds is due.

b. Defined Benefit Plan — Gratuity / Other long-term benefits — compensated absences:

Company's Liability towards Defined Benefit Plans/ Long Term compensated absences is determined by an independent actuary at
the year-end using the project unit credit method. Past service cost is recognised on a straight-line basis over the average period until
the benefits become vested. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or
expense. Obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that is determined by
reference to the market yiclds, at the Balance Sheet date, on Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the Government
Bonds are consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

j) Provision for Taxation

Tax expense comprises of current tax {i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961},
deferred tax charge or credit {reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the
period).

The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only io the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however,
where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a
virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realisation.




k) Provisions and Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets
The Company creates a provision when there exists a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a

(i) possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

(ii) present obligations that arise from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be
realised.

1) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits with banks and short term highly liquid investments, which are readily
convertible into cash and have original maturity of three months or tess.

m) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per sharc are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, bonus element in a rights issue and shares split that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

n) Segment Information
The Company does not have any reportable segment as defined in Accounting Standard (AS-17) on "Segment Reporting" issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.




Note 3 :

GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Share Capital [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2023 2022
[Autharised Shares
62,60,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each £26.00 62&.00
{Previous year: 62,60,000 Equity Shares of INR10/- each)
80,00,000 Preference shares of INR 10/- each 800.00 800.00
{Pravious year: 80,00,000 Preference Shares of INR10/- each)
20,00,000 Preference Shares of INR 10/- each 200.00 200.00
{Previous year: 20,00,000 Preference Shares of INR10/- each)
150 Preference Shares of INR 100/~ each 0.15 0.15
{Previous year: 150 Preference Shares of INR 100/- each)
250 Mon -Cumulative-Redeemable Preference Shares of
INR 100/- each 0.25 0.25
{Previous year: 250 Non-Cummulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of INR 100/- each)
1,626.40 1,626.40
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up:
14,21,584 Equity Shares of INR 10/- 2ach fully paid vp 142.16 142.16
{Previous year: 14,21,584 Eguity Shares of INR 10/- each)
Total 142.16 142.16
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity Shares As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
No. of Shares INR [in Lakhs] No. of Shares INR [in Lakhs]
At the beginning of the year 14,21,584 142.16 14,21,584 142.16
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end 14,21,584 142.16 14,21,584 142.16

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares.

The campany has only one class of equity shares having a par of INR 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entltled to one vote per share. The company
has not declared any dividend during the year. In the event of liguidation of the company, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion tc the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.

Sharehalders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 315t March, 2022
Name of Shareholders
of Share No.of Shares held | % of Holding | No. of Shares held | % of Holding
Equity Shares
Ashwin Suryakant Dani & Ina Ashwin Dani as Trustees of Inaashwin Trust 13,37,898 94.11% 13,37,898 94.11%
Ashwin 5. Dani 83,685 5.89% 83,685 5.89%
Ina A. Dant 1 0.00% 1 0.00%

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from sharehoiders regarding beneficial interest,
the zbove shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

There is ne buy back/bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceeding reporting date.

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Promoter name No. of Shares %of total shares % Change during
the year
Ashwin Suryakant Dani & Ina Ashwin Dani as Trustees of Inaashwin Trust 13,37,898 54.11% 0.00%
{Ashwin S. Dani 83,685 5.89% 0.00%
1 0.00%| 0.00%|

Ina A. Dani




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 4 : Reserves and Surplus [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2023 2022

Capital Reserve 50.02 50.02
Capital Redemption Reserve 507.91 507.91
Capital Reserve {On Amalagamation) 30,725.74 30,725.74
Capital Reserve (Current Investments) 67,347.93 67,347.93
Securities Premium 3,410.54 3,410.54
General Reserve 620.91 62091
Special Reserve 658.40 658.40
Statutory Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the period 12,410.13 11,521.79
Add : Transferred from Profit for the period 1,058.57 838.34
Balance at the end of the period 13,469.70 12,410.13
Balance in statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the period (19,868.30) (23,413.08)
Add ; Profit for the period 5,297.86 4,433.12
Less : Transferred to Statutory Reserve {1,059.57) {888.34}
Balance at the end of the period (15,630.01) (19,868.30)
Total 1,01,161.14 95,863.28




Note 5:

MNote & :

Note 7 :

Note 8 :

Note9:

GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone finantial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

LoNE -Term Borrowings [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March,
2023 2022
Secured
Loans from Financial Institutions [Refer Note 1 bejow] 22,500.00 29,000.00
Less: Current maturity of long term barrowings {22,500.00) {29,000.00)
Total B _
Notes:

1 Loans from Financial Institutians:

Loans from Financial institutions carry interest rate of 7.80 % to 9.05 % p.a. and repayable within 1 to 3 years from the date of

3 gisbursement.

b} Borrowings with Put / Call dates falling due within 12 months from the date of balance sheet are considered as short term.

¢) There were no defaults as on the balance sheet date in repayment of principal and interest.
d) The barrowings are secured by pledging 21,456,000 [38,56,500 in Previcus year) shares of Asian Paints Limited.

Long Term Provisions {INR in lakhs]
Asg at 31st March, | As at 315t March,
2023 2022
Provision for gratuity 217 258
Provision for compensated absences 2.24 3.57
Total 4.41 6.15
Short Term Borrowings [iNR in lakhs]
As at 315t March, | As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Secured:

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings {Refer note 1 below) 22,500.00 29,000.00
Bank overdraft (Refer note 2 below} 395.10 -
Total 22,895.10 25,000.00

Note:

1 Loans from Financial Institutians:

Loans from Financial Institutions carry interest rate of 7.80 % to 5.05 % p.a. and repayable within 1 to 5 years from the date of

3) disbursement.

b} Borrowings with Put / Call dates falling due within 12 months from the date of balance sheet are considered as shert term.

¢) There were no defaults as on the balance sheet date in repayment of principal and interest.
d) The borrowings are secured by pledging 21,465,000 {38,56,500 in Previous year) shares of Asian Paints Limited.

2 Bank Overdraft:

The overdraft facility taken from HDFC bank amoiunting to INR 1,065.50 |akhs and carries interest rate of approx. @ 7.57% p.a.
{Previous year 5.63% p.a.). The Qutstanding balance is INR 395.10 lacs {Previous year INR Nil). It is secured against the fixed
deposits kept with the bank, amounting to INR 1,119,76 lakhs (Previous year INR 1,058.46 lakhs).

Other Current Liabilities [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2023 2012
Interest accrued but not due 68.44 114.78
Statutory liabilities 42.64 44.44
Accrued expenses 10.76 9.2%
Emplayee related payables 2.50 2.88
Other Liahilities 2.52 2.52
Total 126.86 173.91
Short -Term Provisions [INR in Jakhs]
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Provision for gratulty {unfunded) .03 0.03
Provision for compensated absences {unfunded) 0.96 0.12
Provision for Taxatian 4.54 394
[Net of Advance Tax of INR 4,102.50 |akhs (Previous Year: INR 2,221.86 lakhs)
Total 5.93 4,09
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GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 11 : Non- current Investments

Name of the Body Corporate As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Amount Amount
. No. of Sh
No. of Shares (INR in lakhs) o af Shares (INR in lakhs}
WNon-Trade Investments {valued at cost}
Quoted {fully paid up}
Investment in Equity Shares:
= In Subsidiary
Hitech Corporation Limited {Face value INR 10/- each) 1,18,69,295 6,026.03] 1,18,69,295 6,026.03
- In Company in which Directors and their relatives are
able to exercise significant influence
Asian Paints Limited (Refer Note {a} below} 1,33,77,100 12,138.84] 1,33,77,100 12,138.84
[Face value of INR 1/- each )
Unguoted {fully paid u
In House Property
Property at Worli - Tenancy rights - 3.30 - 3.30
Investment in Equity shares:
- in Subsidiaries
Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited
10,50,000 1.11 10,506,000 1.11
{Face value INR 10/- each)
- In Company in which Directors and their relatlves are
able to exercise significant influence
Resins and Plastics Limited (Face value INR 10/- each} 2,35,501 213.19 2,32,901 203.44]
Total 18,382.47 18,372.72
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments 18,164.87 18,164.87
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 3,87,630.25 4,39,075.92,
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 217.60 207.85

a. Investment Piedeged against Borrowings

Of the above Investments 21,46,000 {Previous Year 38,54,000 shares] are pledged agzinst Borrowings.




Note 12:

Note 13 :

Note 14

GEETANIJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Long Term Loans and Advances [INR in lakhs]
As at 315t March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Unsecured, Considered pood {unless otherwise stated)
Advance income tax / Tax deducted at Source
[Met of Provision for tax of INR 2,344.60 lakhs (Previous Year INR 2,331.07 139.59 157.33
lakhs]]
Security Deposits 0.46 0.46
Total 130.05 157.79
Other Non-Current Assets {INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Bank Deposits with original maturity mere than 12 months 0.50 0.50
Prepaid expenses 0.19 0.18
Total 0.69 0.68

Current Investments

[INR in lakhs}

Name of the Body Corporate

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

No, of Shares /
Units

Amount

Na. of Shares /
Units

Amount

Quoted {fully paid up}
Investment in Equity Shares:
- in Campany in which Directors and their relatives
are able to exercise significant influence
Asian Paints Limited {Refer Note (a) below)
[Face value INR 1/- each ]

Unquoted {full id u

Investments in Equity Shares:

- in Company in which Directors and their relatives
are able to exercise significant influence

{a} Gujarat Organics Private Limited {Face value INR 10/- each)

{b} Resins And Plastics Limited (Face vaiue INR 10/- each)

3,23,29,040

851
1,04,233]

1,04,596.39

0.04
31.27

3,23,29,040;

851
104,233

1,04,596.39

0.04
31.27

Total

1,04,627.70

1,04,627.70

Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments
Apgregate market value of quoted Investments
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments

1,04,596.39
8,92,814 93
3131

1,04,596.39
8,95,718.27
31.31

a. Investment Pledged against Barrowings:

Of the above investments Nil [Previous Year 2,500 shares] are pledged against Borrowings.




Note 15 :

Note 16

Note 17 :

Note 18 :

GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Cash and Bank Balances {INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accaunts 0.14 68.72
-i i t with origi ity | h
in deposit account with original maturity less than or equal to ) 459.00
3 months
Cash in hand - 0.10
0.14 527.82
Other bank balances
Bank Deposits with ariginal maturity more than 3 months but 501.00 840.00
less than 12 manths {Refer Note {(a) below)
Bank Deposits with original maturity more than 12 menths 619.76 598.46
{Refer Note (a) below}
1,120.76 1,438.46
Total (A + B) 1,120.90 1,566.28

(a) Bank Deposits of INR 1,119.76 Lakhs {Previous Year 1098.46 Lakhs) held under fien towards security for overdraft

facility issued by HDFC bank.

Shart term Loans & Advances {INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Unsecured, Considered good {unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses 0.43 D.44
Other advances recoverahle 0.01 0.88
Total 0.44 1.33
Other Current Assets [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Unsecured, Considered good {unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on fixed depaosits 28,78 26,33
Total 28,78 26.33
Revenue from Operation [INR in lakhs]
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
[a] Dividend received
- from Subsidiary Company 118.69 121.35
- from Company in which Directors and their relatives are able
to exercise significant influence 9,115.75 8,214.21
(D) Interest ingome
- from fixed deposits 81.95 105.38
Total 9,316.39 8,540.95




Note 19:

Note 20 :

Note 21:

Note 22 :

GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Employee Benefits Expense ['NR in lakhs]
_‘Forthe yearended | .- For the year ended -
. 31st March, 2023~ |~ 31st March, 2022 -
Salaries, wages & bonus 68.52 74.21
Gratuity expense 1.72 0.53
Expenses for compensated absences 1.35 1.45
Contribution to provident funds 2.12 123
Staff welfare expenses 1.64 -
Total 75.35 77.42
Finance Costs [INR in lakhs]
""For the year ended :-| . For the yearended
* 315t March, 2023 |- - 31st March, 2022 -
Interest on term barrowings 1,824.26 2,175.37
Interest on others 4,04 2.50
Total 1,828.30 2,177.87
Depreciation & Amortization expense [INR in lakhs}
- Forthe yearended - | For the yearended
:31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 4.14 12.63
Total 4,14 12.63
Other expenses [INR in lakhs]
."Forthe year enided - | . For the.year ended .
. '31st March, 2023 . | . '31st March, 2022 -
Electricity Expenses 1.70 1.66
Rent 13,50 14.16
Repairs and Maintenance 5.56 2.32
Rates and taxes 021 0.27
Goods and services tax 31.80 7.82
Legal and Professional Fees 25.09 57.00
Director Sitting Fees 3.50 2.70
Director's Remuneration 120.00 24.53
Payment to Auditor
- Audit Fees 6.00 5.96
- Tax Audit Fees 1.25 0.83
- Other Services 0.55 1.12
Travelling & Conveyance 0.04 0.51
Loss on sale / redemption of long term investments - 19.19
Miscellaneous Expenses 2.18 1.84
Total 211.38 139.51




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 23 : Earning Per Share [INR in Iakhs}
'For the year.énded | For the year
Net Profit After Tax 5,297.86 4,433,12
Less:- Preference Dividend - -
Profit available for equity share holders 5,297.86 4,433.12
Weighted average number of equity shares 14,21,584 14,21,584
Earning per equity share
-Basic {INR} 372.67 311.84
-Dituted (INR) 37267 311.84
Note 24 : Contigent Liability
Nil
Note 25: Capital and Other Commitments
Nil
Note 26 : Related Party Disclosures
i Subsidiaries
As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Hitech Carporatian Ltg Hitech Corporation Ltd
Hitech Specialities Solutions Ltd Hitech Specialities Solutions Ltd
Rituh Holding and Trading Comnpany Private
Limited (up to 10th March 2022}
Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited
{up to 10th March 2022}
ii Diractors
As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Mr. Ashwin 5. Dani Mr. Ashwin 5, Dani
Mrs. Ina A, Dani Mrs. Ina A, Dani
Mr. Harish Motiwalla Mr. Harish Motiwalla
. Mr. Bharat Gosalia (w.e.f. 27th September
Mr. Bharat Gosalia
2021)
i Companies over which the Directors and their relatives can exercise significant influence (disciosed only where
the company had transaction with such parties)
As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Asian Paints Ltd Asian Paints Ltd
Resins & Plastics Ltd Resins & Plastics Ltd
iv Key Management Personnel {KMP)
Mr. Mukesh Desai - CFO & Principai officer {w.e.f. 1st May 2021)
Mr. Bharat Gosalia - Principal Officer (upto 30th April 2021}
Mr. Prabhu Chettiyar - Company Secretary {upto 31st August 2022)
Mrs. Namita Tiwari - Company Secretary (w.e.f. 15t June 2023}

Note; Related Party Relationships, other than between a Parent and its subsidiaries, are disclosed only where
the Company has transactions with those parties during the year / previous year.




Note 26 :

GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Related Party Disclosures {Contd...

List of Related Party Transactions

}

[INR in lakhs)

Particulars

Companies over which the Directors
and their relatives can exercise
significant influence

Subsidiaries

Directors

Key Management Personnel

(KMP}

2022-23

2021-22

2022-23 2021-22

2022-23

2021-22

2022-23

2021-22

Dividend Received

- Asian Paints Limited

§,085.52

8,295.66

- Hitech Corporation Limited

118.69 121.35

- Resins & Plastics Limited

20.23

18.54

Sale / Redemption of Investment

Hitech Corporation Limited -
- Redemption of Preference
Shares

- 737.90

Mr. Ashwin Dani / Mrs. Ina
Dani

1.00

Diractors' Sitting Fees

- Mr. Ashwin Dani

0380

- Mrs. [na Dani

1.75

0.50

- Mr. Harish Motiwalla

1.75

0.80

Directars' Rermuneration

- Mr, Ashwin Dani

72.00

- Mr. Bharat Gosalia

48.00

24.53

Remuneration including Professional Feas

- Mr. Bharat Gosalia

64.52

- Mr. Mukesh Desai

19.33

19.02

- Mr. Prabbu Chettiyar

13.54

1232

Employee Benefits paid on transfer

of Employee

Hitech Specialities Solutions
Limited

- 0.48

Employee Benefits paid on transfer

of Employee

- Hitech Corporation Limited

- 1.25

Other Receivables received

- Hitech Corporation Limited

- 58.22

Nota:

All Related Party Transactions entered during the current and previous year were in ordinary course of the business and on arm’s length basis.




GEETANIJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 27 : Employee Benefits

A Defined Contribution Plan

(IR in lakhs)

The Company has recognized the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss under contribution to

provident and other funds as under:

For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Employers’ contribution to Frovident Fund 211 1.23
B Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity {unfunded} — as per actuarial valuation
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Reconciliation of apening and closing balances of Defined Benefit
Opening Balance of Present value of Benefit Obligation 2.61 B.70
Interest cost 0.1% 0.55.
Current service cost 0.85 1.41,
Benefits paid {2.12) 7.19)
Actuarial Gain / {Loss) on obligation 068 [1.44)
Liabiity transferred {Nat) - 0.58h
Closing Balance af Present value of Benefit Obligation 2.21 2.&]
— i As at 31st As at 31st
Net liahility recognised in the Balance Sheet as at March, 2023 March, 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation {2.21) (2.61)
Fair value of plan assets - -
Met liability recognised in the Balance Sheet {2.21) {2.61)
For the year For the year
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss ended 315t ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Current service cost 0.85 1.41
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.19 0.55
Net actuarizl {gain)/loss recognized in the year .68 {1.44}
Met benefit expenses 1.72 0.52
313t March, 31st March,
Actuarial assumptions 2023 2022
Retirement age 5B & 65 years| 58 & 65 years
G. Sec Discount Rate 7.49% 7.31%
Salary escalation rate B.00% 8.00%
Attritlon rates 1.00% 1.00%
Indian Assured| Indian Assured
|Mortality Rate Lives Mortality| Lives Mortality|
{2012-14} Urban( {20:2-14) Urban
Amount recognised in current year and previous four years are as follows: -
Gratuity [Unfunded) As at 31st As at 31st Asg at 31st As at 313t As at 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022 March, 2021 March, 2020 March, 2019
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation [2.21) (2.61) (8.70) (7.07] {40.65}
Plan Assets - - - - -
[Deficit) { Surplus [2.21) {2.61) (8.70) (7.07) {40.65}
Experience adjustment on Plan Liabilities [Loss / (Gain]] 0.76 {0.59) 1.14 013 012
Experience adjustment on Plan assets - - - - -

The estimates of rate of escalatian in salary considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply

and demand in the employment market.

The discounting rate is considered based on market yield on government bonds baving currency and terms cansistent with the currency and terms of the post -

employment benefit obligations.

C Other long tarm benefits

Fhe liability towards compensated absences for the year ended 315t March 2023 based on actuarial valuation carried out by using Projected Unit Credit Methed resulted

in decrease in liability to INR 3.19 lakhs [As on 31st March 2622: INR 3.69 lakhs).




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 28 : Deferred Taxes
The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities are:

[INR in lakhs]

\ As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2023 March, 2022

Deferred Tax Assets
Difference between WDV of assets as per books of
agcount and Income Tax Act 1961 1.13 1.14
Business Losses Carried Forward under the Income Tax
Act 472.88 -
Capital Losses Carried Forward under the income Tax Act 2313 223
Expenses allowable under Income tax on payment basis 0.09
Expenses disallowable under Income Tax Act - 0.50
Total of Deferred Tax Assets 497,14 3.9
Add : Opening Balance - -
Net Deferred Tax Assets 497.14 3.96

Less : *Not Accounted
Net Deferred Tax Expenses for the year
Closing Balance

*Deferred tax assets are not recognised following prudential accounting policy.

Note 29 : Foreign Exchange Transactions

For the year For the year

Particulars ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2023 March, 2022
Earning in Foreign Exchange NIL NIL
Expenditure in Foreign Exchange NIL NiL

Note 30 ; Disclosure with regard to dues to Micro and $mall Enterprises
There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as
at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022, This information as required te be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with

the Company.

Note 31 : Additional disclosure as required under section 186 of The Companies Act, 2013

a Details of investments made are given in Note 11 and Note 14,

b }
Details of loans given by the Company in accordance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder

Purpase for which the
loan is proposed to be
utiised by the recipient

Name of the Company

34 of interest

As at 31st
March, 2023

As at 31% March
2022

Movement during the
year [Additional given /
{repaid}]

- --NOT APPLICABLE - - -

¢ There is no guarantee given by the Company in accordance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued there

under.

Note 32 : Additional information pursuant to Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013, has not been furnished, wherever it is not applicable.

Note 33 : Movement of Provisions during the year

For the year For the year

Particulars ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2023 March, 2022
Provision on Non-perfarming assets NIL NIL
Provision on Standard assets NIL NIL
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GEETANJALI TRAGING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes te standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

ANALYTICAL RATIOS
As st 31st | Asat 31st
i i % Vatlan R for Variance, if an
Ratio Numeratar Denominator March, 2023 | March, 2022 ce =ason ¥
Current Ratig Current Assets Current Liabilities 4.59 365 25.70%| Debrt reduction
h ;
Debt-Equity Ratlo Total Debt Eq::::"'de” 0.23 020  -25.25%|Debt reduction
Debt Service Coverage Ratio ::::n;gs for debt Debt service 1.14 1.07 6.17%|Increase in income.
(|
Average
Return on Equity Ratio Profit after tax Shareholder's 53M% 4.73% 13,61%|Increase in income.
Funds
inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods sold | Average inventory NOT APPLICABLE
Trade Receivables Turnover Ratlo Revenue fram Aw'r_age Trade NOT APPUCABLE
Sales receivables |
. Avarage Trade
Trade Payabies Turnover Ratio Net Purchases NOT APPLICABLE
payables I
Met Capital Turnover Ratio Re\.rem.!e from Working Capital NOT APPLICABLE
operations |
Net Profit Ratio Profit after tax Revem‘m from NOT APPUCABLE
operations
Return on Capital Employed Farning before  |Average Capital 3391%]  3008%|  12.71%|increase in income.
Interest & Taxes |Employed
Return on Investment Income during the |Cost of -117.57% 218.50%| -1%3.99%|Decrease in market value appreciation.
year investments




Note 35:

GEETANIAL TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED AS PER RESERVE BANK OF INDIA MASTER DIRECTION — CORE INVESTMENT COMPANIES |RESERVE BANK) DIRECTIONS, 2016
Tha C: s Care [r [« - Non Deposit Taking - Systermically Impartant [CIC-ND-5I} having certificata of registration {COR) bearing Registration No. B-13.021882 since

24th May, 2017.

The Company forms part of tha Middla Layar as per the Framework for Scale Based Regulation for Non-Banking Fi lal Companies, based on notification RBI/2021-22/112
DOR CRE.REC Mo E0/0A.10.001/2021-22 dated 22nd Octobar 2021, with sffect from st October 2022,

[INR in lakhs]
Amount Amount Amaunt Amount
::_ Particulars 4] dil Overdue Q di Qverdue
As at 3ist March, 2023 Az at 31st March, 2022
1 |Loans and Advances aveiled by the CIC Inclusive of i accrued th hut.
not paid:=
{a}) |Debentures : Secured . - - -
Unsecured - - - -
(Dther than falling within
the meaning of pubtic
deposits *}
{b) |Deferred Credits - - - -
{c] |Term Loans Secured 22,568 - 29,115 -
{d} |Intercorporate loans and borrowing - - - -
(e} |Commercial Paper - - - -
{f) |Other Loans {Ovardraft Facility - sacurad) 395.10 - - -
* As defined in tha Non Banking F | Companies Accep of Public Deposts (R Bank] Di i ole
5r. Particulars A o = A L0 ding
Mo, A5 at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 _
2 |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivable jother than those ;
Included In [4) below):
{2} |%ecured - -
b)) |Unsecured
- Other Advances given 0.0l 0.85
- Advance income tax {net] 135.59 157.33
- Security Deposits D.46 046
- Prepaid expenses 043 0.44

Break-up of Leased Assats and stock on hire and other assets counting towards
asset financing activities

{1} |Lease assetsincluding lease rantals undar sundry debtors:
fa) Financial Leass - -
) Oparating Leass - -
{ii) |5tock on hire ‘ncluding hire charges under sundry debtors:
fa) Assets on hire - -
|b) Repossassad Assats - -
[iii} |Other koans counting towands asset financing activities
{a) Loans where assets have been repossassad - -
{b} Leans other than (a) above - -

4 |Break-up of Investments:

Current
1[Quotad:
[I} Shares : (2} Equity
Agian Faints Limited 1,04,596.39 1,04,5%5.35
{b] Preference - -

[H) Dabenturns and Bands - -
Liii} Units of mutual funds - -
[Iv} Government Sacuritiss - -
v} Othars {Please specify} - -




§r.

Particulars

A kS A

0 nding

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

]

Unquoted:
(I} Shares : [a) Equity
Gujarat Organics Private Limitad
Resins and Plasties Limited

{bj Preferanca
I} Debentures and Bonds
[iTi} Units of mutual funds
|iv} Govarnmant Securfties
v) Others {Please specify)

Lot Teim fnvestments:
Quated:
|i] Sharss : {a) Equity
Hitech Carparation Limited
Asian Paints Limited
{b) Prafarenca
{l} Debantures and Bonds
fili} Units of mutual funds
fiv} Government Securlties
[v} Others {Please specify)
Ungusted:
{i} Shares : {a) Equity
Hitech Speclalities Salitfans Limited
Resins and Plastics Limitad
{b) Praferance
{ii} Debentures and Bonds
yiii} Units of mutual funds
{iv] Government Securities
{v] Others - Propecty at Worli - Tenancy rights

i
213.19

3.30

6,026.03
12,138.84

111
203.44

3.30

Horrower group-wise dassification of assets flnanced as in (2] and (3) above:

Category

As at 31st March, 2023

Amaunt net of Peovisions

Sacured

Unsecured Total

"

Related Parties **

{a) Subsidiaries

{b) Companies in the same group
{c} Other related parties

Other than related parties

Total -

No.

Category

As at I1st March, 2022

Amaunt net of Provisions

tnsecured Tatal

-

i)

Related Parties **

fa} Subsidiaries

{b} Companies n the same group
{c} Other related partles

Other than relatad parties

Total -

** As per Accounting Standard of ICAI

or group-wise classiication of all i

anid long term) in shares and sezurities [both guated and ung

Category

Market Valus Book Value
£ Break up or {Net of

Bopk Valus
(Net of

Market Value
# Break up ar

falr value or NAV Provisian)

fair value ar NAV P

As at 31st March, 2023

As ar 31zt March, 2022

Related Parties

{a) Subsirfarles

{b) Companies in the mme group
{Other than related parties

Total

18,202.67 £6,027.14
12,52,488.12 1,15,979.73

27,068.04 6,027.14
14,07,961.01 1,16,969.98

12,80,690.73 1,23,006.687

14,35,030.05 1,22,957.12

Other inf i

Particulars

Amount Quistanding

Amaunt Outstanding

Asx at 315t March, 2013

As at 31st March, 2022

{0

(i)

(Gross Nan-Perfarming Assets
[a) Related Parties

[b) Other than refated parties
Net Non-Perfarming Assets
|a) Related Parties

|B} Other than related parties

Ascats ired in satisf of debt

(iii)




Note 36:

GEETANJALITRACING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to {alane financial

Asset Liability Management

for the year ended 315t March, 2423

AS at 31st March, 2023 INR in Lakhs
Over 1 COwver 2 Dwer 3
Over s Cwer 1 year
Particulars 1dayto? | 8daysto 14 j15 days to 30| month and | months and | manths and ragaths and | and upto 3 Cver 3 and Qver 5 years Total
days days days upto 2 upta 3 upto & upts 1 year ars upte 5 yaars )
manths months h yed ye
Sharehaldess’ funds
Capital Funds  [Equity . ; . . . . . . .| 10130330 | 1,00,302.30,
and Regerves)
Mon-current liabilities
Long Term Borrowings - - - - - - - - - - b
Long-term Provisions - - - - - - - 4.41 - - 441
Current Habilities -
Short term Borrowing 33510 - - - 1,500.00 13,000.00 8,000.00 - - - 22,895.105
- . - . 2.5 - 26.BE|
(Other Current liabilities 5340 58.92 852 2.50 2 L
Provisions - - - - - 5.01 - - - 593
Total Liabilities 345.10 53.40 58.92 - 1,509.52 13,008.43 2,002.52 4.41 - | 1,01,303.30| 124,335.60
Non-current assets
Pmr_mmr, Plant  and } ; _ _ N . - - - 34,57 3457
Equipmant
Mon current Investments A . _ . . N . - - 18,382 47| 18,382.47
Long-term  Loans  and } ; . R R . B 140,05 - - 14005
Advances
Other  nen  Current] ; . . _ . . .15 0.50 - - 0.59
Assets
Curvent assets
Current |nvestmants - - - - 1,500.00 12,990.00 7.500.00 - - §2,637.70] 1,04,627.70
Gash and Bank Balances 395,10 55.00 £0.00 - 10.00 - 500.00 - 10080 112080
Short term Loans & ; ; . R R . R Q.4d - - .44
Advances
Other current asssts - - - E - 24.20 4.38 0.20 - - 878
Total Assets 395.10 55.00 640.00 - 1,510.00 13,014.20 8.004.57 14119 - | 1,01,155.54| 1,24,335.6
As at 31st March, 2022 INR In Lakhs
Over 1 Over 2 Over3
Ower 6 DOwer 1 year
Dvel
Particulars ldayta7 | #daysto 54 | 15 days to 30| month and | months and | months and manths and | and upto 3 r 3 and Over 5 years Total
days days days upto X upto 3 upta & upta 5 yoars
N - upto 1year years
maonths
Shareholders’ funds
Coepitel Funds (Egquity ; _ R . B . N - - 9E,005.44 56,005 44
and Reserves)
Non-carrent Habllitles
Long Term Borrowings - - - - - - - - - - *
Long-term Provisions - - - - - - - 615 - - E.15
Current lizbilites
5hort term Sorrowing - - - - 10,500.00| 10,000.00 8,500.00 29,000.00
Other Current ltabillties 43.99 0.26 - 50.1% 766 56.53 19.597 - - - 178.00
Provisions - - - - - - - - - - -
Total LUabilities 42,59 026 - 50,19 10,507.66 10,056.33 #,519.97 6,15 - 95,005.44 | 1,25,189.59
Non-turrent assets
Property, Plant  and A _ } . . _ ; . ; 36.76 3676
Equipment.
Non current Investments A _ R . _ . . - - 18,372.72 18,372.7%
Longterm  Loans  and - . . - - - - 157.79 . - 157.79
Advances
Current assets
Current Investments K - - K 10,300.00] 9,400.00| 7,750.00 - £ T1ATTY 1,04,627.69
Cash and Bank Balances £5.82 . 199,00 30.00 230,00 648.46 790,00 - 0.50 || wsesra
Short term  Loans &) 1 i | 1 1 1 1 | i | i
Advances
Other current assats - = 0.83 .15 0.68] 16.60 540 - 0.18] - 27.84
Tatal Assets 58,82 - 199.33 30,15 10,530.68 10,065.06 §,549.40 152.79 0.58 95,587.19 | 1,25,139.59
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GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect:
The Company has no exposure to the real estate sector directly or indirectly in the current and previous year.

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators:
The Company is registered with following other financial sector regulators [Financial regulators as described by Ministry of Finance).
Company registered under Ministry of Corporate affairs.
NBFC registered under Reserve Bank of India

Dischosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulatars:
No Penalties were impased by RBI and ather regulators during the currant and previous year.

No Frauds were reported during FY 2022-23 and FY 2021-22.

Ratings assigned by credtt rating agencies

As at 31st March, 2023
ln::f:;r::ats Name of the rating agency Rating assigned Valid upto Borrowing limit or conditions imposed by rating agency
NIL
As at 31st March, 2022
|n:::::1s::,s Name of the rating agency Rating assigned Valid upte Borrowing limit or conditions imposed by ratlng agency
NIL

Disclosure required as per Reserve Bank of India Notification No. DOR{NBFC). PD.003/03.10.119/2016-17 dated August 25, 2016 and as updated from time to time

Public disctosure on liquidity risk
Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty
for the year ended 31st March, 2023

No. of significant Counter

5r. No, Parties Amount {INR in Lakhs) % of Total Borrowings % of Total Liabilities
1 6 22,895.10 100.00% 99.40%
TOTAL 22,895.10 - 99.40%

For the year ended 31st March, 2022

No. of significant Counter

5r. No. Parties Amount {INR in Lakhs} % of Total Borrowings % of Total Liabllities
1 5 29,000.00 100.00% 99.37%
TOTAL 29,000.00 - 99.37%
Note: A “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in
aggregate for mare than 1% of the NBFC's total liabilities
Top 20 large deposits
As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
nmu;-.l::':;lNR in % of Total Borrowings Amount [INR in Lakhs) % of Total Barrowings
NA NA
The Company is a hon-deposit accepting CIC, hence not applicable.
Top 10 borrowings
As at 315t March, 2023 As at 315t March, 2022
Sr. No.
Amount {INR in Lakhs) % of Total Borrowings Amount {INR in Lakhs} % of Total Borrowings

1 11,500.00 50.23% 9,000.00 31.03%

2 5,000.00 21.84% 7,500.00 25.86%|

3 3,000.00 13.10% 5,000.00 17.24%

4 1,500.00 6.55% 4,000.00 13.79%|

5 1,500.00 6.55% 3,500.00 12.07%:

6 395.10 1.73%)| - -
TOTAL 22,895.10 29,000.00




{iv}

fv)

{vi)

Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

5r. No. Name of the instrument/ As at 31st March, 2023 A= at 315t March, 2022
praduct Amount [INR in Lakhs) % of Total Borrowings Amount {INR in Lakhs) % of Total Borrowings
a Term Borrawings from 23,568.44 52.28% 29,000.00 1040.00
Financial Institutions
b QOverdraft facility from bank 395,10 1.72% - -
22,963.54 100.00% 29,000.00 130.00
Stock Ratips:
i, Year ended 315t March 2023 Year ended 31st March
5r. No. Particulars {Ratios} 2022
{Ratios)
1 Commercial papers as a % of total public funds Nil il
2 Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total Nil Nit
liahilities
3 Commercial papers as a % of total assets Nil Nil
4 Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less Nil Ni}
5 Non-convertible debentures [original maturity of less Nil il
than ona year) as a % of total liabilities
6 Non-convertible debentures [original maturity of less Nil ) Nil
than one year} as a % of total assets
7 Other short-term liabikties, if any as a % of total public 100.28% 100.22%
funds
8 Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total liahilities 95.98% 99.93%
9 Other short-term llabilities, if any as a % of total assets 18.52% 23.31%

Institutional set-up of liquidity risk management.

The Beard of Directors of the Company has constituted the Asset Liability Management Committee and the Risk Management Committee. The Asset Liability Management
Committee is supported by Asset Liahility Management Support Group to analyse, monitor and report the liquidity risk profile to the Asset Liability Management Committee.

The Asset Liability Management Committee reviews the liguidity risk managemaent, funding and capital plannirg, analyzing different scenarios and preparation of contingency
plans. Further, the Risk Management Committee monitors and measures the risk profile of the Company.

The Company manages kiquidity risk in accordance with the Coempany’s Liquidity Risk Management and Asset Liability Management Policy. The Company manages lauidity
risk by maintaining sufficient cash surplus and by keeping adeguate amgunt of committed credit lines to meet its repayment obligations.

{vii) Components of Adjusted Net Worth (ANW) and other related information
{INR in lakhs)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
1 Adjusted Net Worth [ANW) 6,36,235.06 B,78,618.45
2 Risk Weighted Assets [RWA) 1,23,049.05 1,23,065.48
3 ANW as a %% of Risk Weighted Assets [1/2) 517.55% 551.43%
. 4 Unrealized appreciation in the book value of quoted investments 12,67,210.86 13,61,373.37
5 Diminution in the aggregate book value of quoted investments NIL NIL
a Dutside Liabilities 23,032.30 23,184.14
i Leverage Ratio [6/1) : T 004 Q.04
[viiijy  Investmentin other CICs
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
a) Total amount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution
made by one CIC in another CIC {including name of CICs) NIL NIL
b} Number of CICs with their names whereln the direct or indirect capital .
contribution exceeds 10% of Owned Funds NIL NIL
c] Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital
contribution is 'ess then 10% of Cwned Funds NIL NIL
{ix}  Off Balance Sheet Exposure
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
i} Off balance sheet exposure MIL NIL
ii) Financial Guarantee as a % of total off-balance sheet exposure NIL NIL
iii) Non-Finangial Guarantee as 3% of total off-balance sheet exposure NIL NIL
iv] Off balance shest exposure to overseas subsidiaries MIL HIL
] Letter of Comfort issued to any subsidlary NIL NIL
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Investments
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
{1] Value of Investments
{i} Gross Value of Investments
{a] In India 1,23,010.17 1,23,000.42
{b) Outside India NIL NIL
{il} Provisions for Depreclation
{a] In India NIL NIL
{b) Quiside india NIL MIL|
{ill) Net Value of Investments
{a] In India 1,23,010.17 1,23,000.42
{b) Qutside (ndia. NIL NIL
{2} Movement of pravisions held towards depreciation on investments.
(i} Opening balance NiL MIL|
(i} Add : Provisions made during the year NIL NIL
(i1} Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year NIL NIL
{iv]) Closing balance NIL NIL
Business Ratios
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Return an Equity {RoE] 5.37% 4.73%
Return on Assets [RoA) 4.26% 3.54%
Net profit per employee {in lakhs) 882.98 738.85
Provisions and Contingencies
Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the Profit and Current Year Previous Year
Loss Account
Pravisians for depreciation on Investment Nil Nil
Provision towards NPA il Mil
Praviston made towards Income tax 1,881.64 1,700.00
Other Provision and Contingencies il Nil
Provision for Standard Assets Mil Ni!
Concentration of NPAs
Particulars Current Year
E re as a % of total
Amount (INR in Lakhs) *posu
assets
Total Exposure to tap five NPA accounts Nil Nil
Particulars Previous Year
1
Amount {INR in Lakhs) Exposure as a % of tota
assets
Total Exposure to 1o five NPA accounts Nil Nil

Overseas Assets (for those with loint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)

Not applicable, as company does not have any joint venture and subsidiaries abroad during the current as well as previous year.




GEETANIALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to dalone financial for the year ended 315t March, 2623

{wiv}  Misturity pattern of Azsets and Liahilities

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabllitios as at 31st March, 2023 {INR in lakhs]
Duer & monthe] Ovor Lyaar | Ower 3 years
15 dayste | Dver Lmonth |Over 2 hs|Over 3 th
Teul 1te 7 da Totsi
Particulars .3 s Eto 14 days 20/31days | upto 2 month upto 3 ie| uptc 6 ) and upto 1 and upto 3 and upta§ | Ower 5 years oui
year yasr year
Advances - - - - - - - - . - -
- - - - 1,500.00 12,990.00 7,500.00 - - 1,01,030-17 1,23,010.17
Borrawings 355.10 - - - 1,500.00 13,000.00 2,000.00 - - - 22,595.10
Foreign Current assets - - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Current linbiliti . - . - - . - - - -
Maturity p of certain iterns of assets and Kabllities as at 313t March, 2022
Over & Over 1year | Cuer 3 years
15dayito | Ower 3 month | Ower 2 Over 3 I
Particulars lre7d Bto 14
2ys days 30/31days | upto 2 menth {ugto 3 ns| upto & and upta 1 and upto 3 andupte 5 | Ower 5 years Total
year year year
- - - - 10,300.00 5,400.00 7,750.00 - - 85,550.42 1,23,000.42
Borrowings - . - - 10,500.00 10,000.00 B,500,00 - - - 25,000.00
Forelgn Current assets - - - - - . - - - - -
Forelgn Current liabiitles - - - - - . . B . N .
Note 43; Related Party Disclosure;
[INR in Iakhs]
Others [Campanies over
Key Management . which Diractor and their
Related Pa Subsidiaries Othes [Directars Total
h Personned o ) relatives can exerclse
significant Infulence)
. Ttems As at 31st As at 313t As at Flst Asat 3lst Asatils Asat 3Lst A5 at F1st As at 31st As at 31st As atITst
March, 2023 { March, 2022 | March, 2023 | mavch, 2022 | March, 2023 { March, 2022 | March, 2023 | March, 2022 | March, 2023 | March, 2022
Investients
Hitech Corporation Lid
- Maximum autstanding during the year 6,026.03 5,026.03 65,026.03 6,026.03
- Qutstanding al the year end 5,026.03 5,026.03 6,026.03 6,026,035
Hitech Sprdalities Solutions Lid
- Mazirmnurn cutstanding during the year 111 111 111 111
- Outstanding at the year and 111 111 111 111
Asian Paintd Led
- Maximum gutstanding during the year 1,16,735.23 1,16,735.21 1,16,735.23 1,16,735.3
- Qutstanding at the year end 1,16,735.73 1,1€,735.73 1,16,735.23 1,16,435.23
Resins and Plastics Led
- Maximum autstanding during the year 244 46 234711 244 46 234.71
- Dutstandirg at the year end 214 46 234.71 24416 23471
Gu|rat Organics Put Lid
- Maximum outstanding durlng the year .04 fii) .04 0.04
- Qutstanding at the year end 0.04 0.04 0.04 9.04
Ir ion including Professional Fees
- Mr. Bharat Gosalia - 84.52 - 64.52
- hr. Prabhu Chettiyar 13.54 1332 13.54 1232
- Mr. Mukesh Desai 19,33 19.02 19.33 13.02
Sale / T £ Purch of
- Mr. Ashwin Danl & Mra. Ina Cani (Sale of
{investment} B 100 h 1.00
- Hitech i i
itech Corparation L‘.d [Fedemption of R £7.90 R 737.90
Preference Shares recaived}
Director’s Remuneration
- Mr. Bharat Gosalia AR.O0 2453 48.00 24,52
- Mr. Ashwin Dani 72.00 - 72.00 -
Dividend Income
- Aslan Paints Ltd 9,095.52 B,295.56 9,095.52 8,245.66
- Hitech Corpevatian Ld 118.69 17135 118.69 121.35
- Resing and Plastics Ltd 20.23 18.54 20.23 1854
DHrector's Sitting Fees
- Mr, Ashwin Dani - .50 - 0.90
- Mrs. Ina Dani 175 0.90 175 .90
- Mr. Harish Motiwall 1.75 0.50 175 .90
[Employes Benefits pald on transfer of Employes
- Hiterch Speclalities Selutions Limited - 0.45 - .49
Employes Benefits paid on transfer of Employee
- Hitech Corparation Limirad - 1.25 - 1.3
(Otther Recehvable received
- Hitech Corporation Limited - 58.22 - 5822

Note:
all Related Party Transactions entered during the current and previous year were In ordinary course of the business and on arm'’s length basis.




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Note 44 : A) Exposure

1) Exposure to Reol Estate Sector NiL
2) Exposure to Capital Market [INR in Lakhs]
Category Current Year Previous Year

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of

i |equity oriented mutual funds the carpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate 1,22,761.26 1,22,761.26
debt (@)*
Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to

i |individuals for investment in shares {including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible Nil Nil

debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual funds

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible

iii N . . . Nil Nil
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security
Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or

v convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds f.e. Nil Nil

. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures /
units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances

v Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of Nil Nil

stockbrokers and market makers

Loans sanctioned to corparates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other

vi |securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new Nil il
companies in anticipation of raising resources
vii | Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues Nil Nil
viii Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or Nil Nil
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds
ix t Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading Nil Nil
x |All exposures to Alternative investment Funds:
{a) Category | Nil Nil
(b) Category il
{c} Category Il
Total Exposure to Capital Market 1,22,761.26 1,22,761.26

* Direct Investment include shares pledged towards borrowings amounting to INR 1,547.35 Lakhs.
@ Including Investment in Subsidiary - Hitech Corperation Ltd) Current Year INR 6,026.03 lakhs , Previous Year INR 6,026.03 lakhs

‘ 3) Sectoral Exposure NI
4) intra-Group Exposures Wi
5) Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposures MNiIL

B} Disclosure of Complaints

1) Summaory information on complaints received by the NBFCs from Customers and from the NiL
Offices of DOmbudsman
2) Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from Customers NA

C} Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and Relatives of Directors MNiL




Note 45 :

{i)
(i)
{iii)
{iv)
fv)

{vii)
(viii}
fix)

Note 46 :
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GEETANIJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Information with regards to the following matters as specified in Division | of Schedule Il of The Companies Act,
2013,

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Group for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies
beyond the statutary period as on Balancesheet date.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities {Intermediaries} with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person{s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with
the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries} or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961 (such as,
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1361.

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account in
compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act since Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) is
not applicable to the company.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund
specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section
135 of the Act since Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) is not applicable to the company.

Additional information pursuant to Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, has not been furnished, to the extent not
applicable.

For and on behalf of Board of
Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Ashwin §. Dani Ina A. Dani
Directer Director
DIN: 00009126 DIN: 00053695
de—h-ﬁ- ' E d . -~

i
Mukesh Desai Namita Tiwari
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date; 16th June, 2023




KHANDHAR
MEHTA &
SHAH

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OFf
GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS
PRIVATE LIMITED {“the Holding Company”} and its subsidiaries {the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group”) as listed in Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consclidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and consolidated notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the report of other auditor on separate financial statements, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”}
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated
profit and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing {SAs} specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {(iICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Directors report but does not inciude

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsikility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider wheth @ther information is materially inconsistent
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with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard, based on the
draft Directors Report provided to us.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the consclidated financial position, consclidated financial performance and consolidated cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective board of directors of the Companies
in the group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, de5|gn and perform audit proced ures responswe to those ;risks, and




not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are approgpriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies have adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision, and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charge  d with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries, whose financial statement {before
eliminating intercompany balances} reflects total assets of Rs. 41,260.20 lakhs as at March 31, 2023,
total revenues (before eliminating intercompany balances) of Rs. 70,747.11 lakhs and net cash outflow
amounting to Rs. 503.63 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consoligéf' “fingncial
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statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary,
and our report in terms of sub-section (3} of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Qur opinion on the censolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 {"the Order”} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of Companies the Act, 2013, we give in
Annexure ‘A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by the section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report
of other auditor on consolidated financial statements and other financial information of two subsidiary,
we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

() The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Fiow dealt with by this repart are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2023, and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and on the
basis of the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries, none of the directors Holding
Company and its subsidiaries are disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2} of the Act.

{(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in Annexure ‘B’. Our report expresses an unmeodified opinicn on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements.

(g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and te the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, there is no remuneration paid / provided
by the Holding Company during the year. So the provisions of section 197 of the Act, does not apply.




(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according 1o the explanations given to us, we further report that:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group in the consolidated financial statements — Refer
Note 37 to the conselidated financial statements.

The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Group.

(a) The Management of the Holding Company has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security o¢ the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management of the Holding Company has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Group from any person or entity, including foreign entity
{“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Group shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under {a} and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

As per the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, no dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding
Company. Accordingly, compliance with the provisions of Section 123 of the Act is not
applicable.

/ﬁ M;,\%




vi.  As proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023 and accordingly, reporting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023 to the Group.

For, KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Reg. No. 512w

PARTNER
M. No.: 112626

UDIN: 23112626BGSHIF7420
Mumbai; June 16, 2023.



Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditer’s report

Referred to Para 1 ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report to the members

of the Company on the consolidated financial statements of GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS
PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2023, '

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us, following companies incorperated in
India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have certain remarks included in their
reports under Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {“CARO"), which have been reproduced as per
the requirements of the Guidance Note on CARO:

Sr | Name of the entity CIN Holding/Associate | Clause
Company number of
the CARO
report
1 | Hitech Specialities Solutions U65990MH1978PLCO20745 | Subsidiary Clause 7{b}
Limited Company




Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in Para 2 {f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of the Holding Company on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of GEETANJALI
TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries {(Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the group”) which are companies incorporated in
India, as listed in Annexure |, as at March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to the financial statements criteria
established by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reposting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issuad by ICAlI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to the financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,

to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internai financial controls system with reference to the financiai
statements of the Holding Company and subsidiaries incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A comnpany's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of the financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the report of other auditor, to the best of out
information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
incorporated in India have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference
to the financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to the
financial statements criteria established by the Helding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
India considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

Other Matters

1. OQur aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls with reference 1o consclidated financial statements insofar as it
relates to one subsidiary company, which is company incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding report of the auditor of such company incorporated in India.




Qur opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the report of the other auditor.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For, KHANDHAR MIEHTA & SHAH
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Reg. No. 1255120

A. Gautam Meht
PARTNER
M. No.: 112626

UDIN: 23112626BGSHIF7420
Mumbai; June 16, 2023.

Annexure 1
List of entities included in the consolidated financial statements
Subsidiary Companies

1. Hitech Corporation Limited
2. Hitech Specialties Solutions Limited



GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: UES990MH1979PTCAZ1049
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
{INR in lakhs]

Particulars Nate  Asat As at
No. 31st March, 2023 315t March, 2022
1. | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 | Shareholders’ funds
{a) Share capital 3 142.16 142.16
{b] Reserves and surplus 4 1,15,130.14 1,11,2572.09
1,19,272.30 1,11,439.25
2 | Minarity Interest 1,517.50 6,703.66
3 | Non-current liabilities
{2} Long Term Borrowings 5 1,504.28 3,783.18
Ib) Deferred Tax Liabilities [Net) 6 265.27 319.39
{c) Other Long-term Liabilities i 25.50 25.50
[c) i.ong-term Provisions 5 659.40 519.96
2,454.45 4,648.03
4 | Current liabilities
|a} Short-term Borrowings ] 27,508.53 34,818.44
{b] Trade Payahles 10
(i} Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 337.33 446,98
(i) Total outstanding dues to craditors other than (i} above 2,251.29 3,077.97
{c} Other Current Liabilities 11 768.45 1,132.65
. {d) Short-term Provisions 12 444.28 508.21
31,409.88 39,991,29
1,60,654.13 1,62,782.23
1. | ASSETS
1 | Non-current assets
{a] Property, plant and equipment and Intangibie assets
{i} Property, plant and equipment 13A 22,165.55 23,668.28
lii} Intangible assets 13p 12.86 17.24
{iii] Capital wark- in- progress 13C 543.33 210.59
[} Goodwill on consolidation 1,085.84 1,085.84
{t] Nen-current Investments 14 13,909.53 13,861.74
(d) Deferred tax assets [net] 15 41.51 40.89
{e] Long-term Loans and Advances 16 1,504.38 1.075.38
(F) Other non-current assets 17 72712 709.86
[g) Mon current assets heid for sale 18 56.18 133.08
40,146.30 40,802,590
2 | Current assets
() Current Investments 19 1,06,619.54 1,05,127.70
[b} Inventories 20 5,081.07 5.854.49
{t) Trade receivabies 21 6,131.79 7.588.36
{d} Cash and bank balances 22 1,445.50 2,803.10
{e) Shart-term |cans and advances 23 432.17 364.22
|f] Other current assets 24 743.76 241.45
1,20,507.83 1,21,979.33
Q 1,60,651.13 1,62,782.23
Significant Accounting Policies 1532
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our repart attached Far and on behalf of Board of
For Khandhar Mehta/& hw‘ = /‘7/‘1\ Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Chartered Accou
Registration No.i

G WSW W
/
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&y Ashwin S. Dani (na 4. Dani
\ / Directar Director
Membership Na.: 1126256 —— " AN:000091 26 DIN; B0R53695
1
) v ]
Mool
Mukesh Desai Narnita Tiwart
Chief FInancial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Data: 16th lune, 2023 Date: 16th June, 2023




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: UG5990MH1979PTCOZ1049

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

[INR in lakhs]
. For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars Note No.
Ot NO-l 31ct March, 2023 | 315t March, 2022
1 Revenue from operations 25 79,567.20 £8,138.91
3 Other Income 26 346.44 360.82
4 Total Hevenue 79,913.64 88,495.73
5 | Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 27 34,704.45 39,706.88
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 28 12,103.55 14,871.20
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 29 467.39 {569.96)
Employee Benefits Expenses 30 4,193.49 4,143.74
Finance cost 31 3,173.76 3,774.70
Depreciation and amortization expense 32 2,756.59 2,974.75
Other expenses i3 11,174.33 11,037.44
Total Expenses 58,573.56 75,938.75
& | Profit before excaptional and extraardinary items and tax (4-5} 11,340.08 12,560.98
7 | Exceptional items 34 380.61 796.04
8 | Profit before extraordinary items and tax (6 - 7) 11,720.69 13,357.02
9 | Extraordinary ltems EL) - 23.05
10 | Profit before tax [8-9) 11,720.69 13,380.07
11 | Tax Expenses
- Current Tax (3,057.50) (3,481.32)
- Deferred Tax 54.75 110.44
- Prior year tax adjustments {13.13) [2.07)
Total Tax Expense {3,015.88}) {3,372.95)
12 | Profitf {Loss) after tax {10- 1%} 8,704.81 10,007.12
|Less : Minority Interest {866.90) {1,155.55)
Net Profit / {Loss) attributable to shareholders 7.837.91 8,851.57
13 | Earnings per equity share:
Basic & diluted 38 551.35 622.6b
Significant Accounting Policies 182

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached

For ¥handhar Mehfs & Shah ' For and on behalf of Board of
Chartered Accountants £ ?‘-Plitfﬁj}:_—\ Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Registration No. 12"55f § ) - —'}?\\\

a4 o e i . W‘ ’_bﬂ_‘,g-ﬁf’b
vow)iol - _/d_f,/ —_—

vl
\ \__,.av/\‘f‘"-/ Ashwin 5. Dani Ina A. Dani
Partner L ___.‘-'/ Director Director
Membership No.: 112626 DIN:00009126 DIN:00053655
/ymadu-dh""' &! Y- 3700
e

Mukesh Desai Namita Tiwari
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbal Place: Mumbai

Date: 16th june, 2023 Date: 16th lune, 2023




GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: US5990MH1979PTC021049

C lidated Cash Flow 5tat

t for the year ended 315t March, 2023

[INR in lakhs}

A, |CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES -

Far the year ended 315t March, 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2022

Met Profit before tax and extraordinary item 11,7069 13,380.07
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2,756.59 2,979.89
Loss an sale of long term equity investments - 19.19
IFinance Cost 1,345.45 377470
Pravision for doubtful debts {written back) (372.35) {12.30)
Pravision for doubtful advances - 173.25
{profit] on sale of property, plant and equipment (445.29) [829.85)
Unrealised foreign exchange (nat) loss/[gain) 191 (0.50)
Provision for Loss written back - [624.17)
Qividend income - (0.10)
Bad Debts written off 2248 8927
Loans & Advances Written off 147.52 106.14
Interest (Income} {162.44) (35.40)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 15,010.56 19,020.10
Adjustments for chonges in ;
Inventories 773.43 {1,095.34)
Trade and Other receivables 1,565.34 287.35
Current and non-current loans and advances (134.07) 28.29
Cther current and non-current assets {183.69) {74.56)
Trade and Other Payabies [858.41) 273,84
Other liabilities and provisions {161.64) 261,65
Cash Generated from pperations 16,015.52 18,761.47
Income Tax Paid [Net} {3.250.73) {3,629.83)
Amortisation in relation to revaluation - {5.14)
Net Cash generated from operoting activities 12,764.79 15,126.50
B. |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -
Furchase of Froperty Plant and Equipment & Intangible assats (1,927 .31) {1,926.61)
|Proceeds fram sale of Property Plant and Equipment 229.83 1,318.70
Purchase of long term Investments [9.75) -
Purchase of mutual fund {net} {1,491.84) (500.00)
Security deposits Given {0.20} [76.31)
Fixed deposits with banks {net) {72.92) {517.44)
Fixed deposits with bank held under licn or in cscrow account {net) 340.00 -
Interest received 139.94 3971
Dividend received - 0.10
Net Cosh used In investing activities {2,792.25) (1,661.85)
€. [CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -
{Decrease) in long term borrowings {9,184.73) {7,937.89)
{Decrease) in short term borrowings (404.08) {1,825.38)
Paid for Loans and Advances - {109.03)
Dividend and dividend tax paid 153.073 {53.54)
Finance Cost Paid {1,356.56) [3,689.71)
Net Cash used in Finoncing Activities [10,908.83) {13,629.55)
Net {Decreasej in Cosh and Cash Equivalents (1,031.30) {164.90}
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,340.16 1,505.06
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 08.86 1,343.16
Notes:
1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprises of :
Balances with bank
- in current account 300.09 292.07
- in deposit account with maturity less than or equal to 3 months 5.33 1,042.10
Cash in hand 3.44 5.99
308.86 1,340.16




GEETANIALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: UB5990MHL979PTCO21049

Consalidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2623

The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in AS 3 - 'Cash Flow Statements’.

Since the Parent Company is an investrnent company, purchase and sale of investments have been consldered as part of 'Cash flow from investing|
activities' and finance cost of INR 1,828.30 lakhs {previous year : INR 2,177 87 lakhs}, interest carned (net) - INR 81.95 iakhs (Previous period - INR 105.39

lakhs) and dividend earned of INR 2,234.44 lakhs {Previous year - INR 8,435.56 |akhs) have baen considered as part of 'Cash flow from operating activities'.
Direct taxes palid is treated as arising from oparating activities and is not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

Figures in brackets are outflows/ deductians. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary.

As per our report attached

For Khandhar Mehta & Shah..
Chartered Accounta
Registratian No. 1

O Ahimecatag|®
2\125512300
Gautam Mehta A

Partner : 'S:]/ N
Membership No.: 1126,

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th June, 2023

Far and on behalf of Board of
Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Ashwin S. Dani tna A, Dani
Director Director
DIN:00D09126 DIN: 0DD53695

! g ‘ ] 1 ~t
Mukesh Desai Namita Tiwari
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th lune, 2023




Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Consolldated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited {the "Holding Company”} is a private limited company domiciied in India and
incarporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was registered as a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking
Financial Company [‘NBFC-ND') with the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI'} with effect from March 2, 1998 and has got classified as a Nan-
Banking Financial Company — Non-Deposit taking - Systemically important ['NBFC-ND-51'). Subseguently, the Company had applied to RBI
for conversion from NBFC-ND-$I to Core Investment Company — Non Deposit Taking — Systemically Important (CIC-ND-$1} and has been
granted registration on May 24, 2017, The Holding Company is engaged in the business of investments in shares and securities. The Helding
Company forms part of the Middle Layer as per the Framewaork for Scale Based Regulation for Non-Banking Financial Companies, based on
notification RBI/2021-22/112 DOR.CRE.REC.No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated 22nd Cctober 2021, with effect from 1st October 2022.

Z. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basls of Accounting:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India {Indian GAAP). The
Group has prepared these financial statements under the historical cost convention on acerual basis of accounting ta comply in all material
respects with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act“} read with Rule 7 of the
Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014, to the extent applicable.

The classification of assets and liabilities of the Group into current or non-current is based on the Group's normal operating cycle and other
criterion specified in the Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013. The Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

b} Principles of Consolidation: )

The Conselidated Financial Statements relate to Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited (“the Holding Company”] and it's
subsidiaries {the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”). The Conselidated Financial Statements have
been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements in subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the financial statements of the Parent Company and three of its subsidiaries

drawn up to the same reporting date i.e. 31% March, 2023.

The consalidated financial statements of the Helding Cempany and its subsidiaries is dene on line by line basis adding together the boak
values of the like items of assets, {iahilities, income and expenses after eliminating all significant intra-group balances, intra-group
transactions and unrealised profit or loss. The result of the operations of the subsidiaries is included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which the parent subsidiary relationship came into existence. The difference between the cost of investment
in the subsidiaries as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognised in the consalidated financial statements as Goodwill or Capital
Reserve, as the case may be. Goodwill arlsing on consolidation is tested for impairment annually. Minority’s interest in net profit or ioss of
consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income in order to arrive at the net income attributable to the
shareholders of the Company. Their share in net assets is identified and presentad in the Consolidated Balance Sheet separately. As far as
possible, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniferm accounting policies for like transactions and other events
in similar circumstances.

Particulars of subsidiaries and associate:-

Name Country  of | Propertionate | Proportionate
Incorporation | share in | share in
ownership ownership

Interest as ob | Imterest as on
31+ March, { 31 March,

2023 2022

Subsidiary Companies

Hitech Corporation Limited India 69.11% 69.11%
Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited India 100% 100%4%
Rityh Holding and Trading Company India - -
Private Limited (up t¢ March 9, 2022)

Ria Enterprises {up to March 9. 2032) India - -
Paladin Paints & Chemicals Private India - -

Limiled (up to March 9. 2022)

Geetanjali Trading and Investment Private Limited holds 60% partnership share in Ria Enterprise and Ria enterprise further holds 93.08% in
Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited, leading to 55.85% indirect holding in Padadin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited {up to
March 9, 2022)




Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

¢] Use of Estimates:

The preparaticn of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities as of the date of
financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. Management believes that the estimates
used in the preparation of financial statements are prudent and reascnable. Actual resuits could differ from the estimates,

d] Property, Plant and Equipment:

The property, plant and equipment are stated at cost {net of cenvat credit, wherever applicable) less accurnulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. The cost includes cost of acquisition including taxes, duties and other identifiable direct expenses incurred to
bring the assets to their present location and condition. Expenses directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during Its construction
period are capitalised. Knowhow related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalised under relevant
asset heads. Interest on borrowed funds attributable up to the period assets are put to use is included in the cost of qualifying assets.
Freehold land {Plot at Gujarat) is measured at cost and is not depreciated. Profit or loss an disposal is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and |ass.

e] Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of intanglble assets acquired in arnalgarnation in
the nature of purchase is reflected at their fair value as at the date of amalgamation. Profit or loss on disposal is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and loss.

f] Capital work-in-progress & Capital Advances

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, s shown as capital work-in-progress. Advances given towards
acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as “Long term loans and advances”.

gl Depreciation and amaortization:

Depreciation is provided on all assets under written down value method over the useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule )l to the
Companies Act, 2013,

For one of the subsidiary, depreciation 1s provided on straight line method, except Building, which is depreciation on written down value
method. The estimated useful life over which these assets are depreciated are as follows:-

Assets Useful life
Buildings 15 to 60 years
Plant & Machinery 510 19 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Moulds 4 years
Computer 3-5 years
Vehicles 5 — 8 years
Office Equipment 5 years

Leasehold land and leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease.

Purchase cost, user license fees and consultancy fees for major software and patent are amortised over a period of three years.

In respect of revalued assets amortisation is done as per balance amount as on 1* April, 2014 divided by balance useful life of the assets as
per the scheduie I! of the Companies Act, 2013.

h} Impairment

At the Balance sheet date, an assessment s done to determine whether there is any indication of impairment in the carrying amount of the
Group's fixed assats. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

An assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in
pricr accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists the assets recoverable amount is
estimated. The carrying amount of the fixed asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.




Geetanjali Trading and nvestments Private Limited
Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

After recognition of impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation charge for the asset is adjusted in future
periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less its resldual value {if any), on straight line basis over its rematning useful life,

i} Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer. The amount recognised
as sales is exclusive af GST/ CST/ VAT and are net of returns. Sales are stated gross of excise duty.

Revenue from service is recognised as per the compieted service contract method. Brokerage income is recognised when the receipt of the
brokerage from the insurance companies becomes certain.

Processing income is recognised on accrual basis as per the contractual arrangements.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.
Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis.

ji Lease Accounting:
Lease Rentals on assets taken on operating lease are recognised as expense in the Profit and Loss account on accruaf basls over the lease
term.

k} Inventorles:

Traded, raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, packing materials, stores, spares and consumables are carried at lower of cost and
net realizable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. Damaged, unserviceable and inert
stocks are valued at net realizable value,

Cost is ascertained on First-in-First-out basis for raw material, packing material, stores, spares and consumables.

Cost finlshed goods and work-in-progress Includes cost of raw materials, packing materials, an appropriate share of fixed and variable
production overheads, taxes for which credit cannot be availed as applicable and other cests incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

1) Investments:

Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments
are made are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as non-current Investments. However, that part of non-
current investments which are expected to be realised within twelve months from balance sheet date is also presented under “Current
Assets” under *Current portion of non-current investments,” '

Long term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of iong-term investments is made oniy if such a decline is
other than temporary in the opinion of the management.

Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value and the resultant decline, if any, is charged to statement of profit and loss.
Non-current investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution in the valuz of non-current investments is made, cnly if, such 2
decline is other than temgorary in the opinion of the managament.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

m) Loans and advances

Loans and advances given are classified under four categories i.e. [i) Standard Assets, {ii} Sub-standard Assets, {iii) Doubtful Assets and [iv]
Loss Assets as per directions issued by the RBI.

Frovision on loans and advances is made as per the provisioning requirements mentioned in the directions issuad by the R8I,

n} Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, deposits with banks and short term highly liguid investments,
which are readily convertible Into cash and have original maturity of three months or less.




Geetanlall Trading and Investments Private Limited
Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

o) Borrowing costs:

Rorrowing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary costs, amortization of discounts related to borrowings and foreign exchange to
the axtent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable te the acquisition or
construction of qualifying asset are capitalised as part of such asset till such time that the asset is ready for its Intended use or sale. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes substantial pericd of time tc get ready for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurrad.

p} Fareign Currency Transactions:

i Initial recognition:
Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Commission receivables in
foreign currencies are accounted at the fixed exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions
settled during the year are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

il Measurement of foreign currency items at the Balance sheet date:
Foreign currency monetary Items are restated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary Items are recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of transaction. Exchange differences arising out of these transiations are recognised in the Statement of Profit ang
Loss.

i, Forward exchange contracts:
Forward exchange contracts are entered inte to hedge against foreign currency exposures relating to the underlying transactions and firm
commitments. The Group does not enter into any derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contract amertized and recognized as an expensefincome
over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which the exchange rates change. Any Profit and Loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such forward exchange contract is also
recognized as income or expense for the period.

g] Trade Receivables:
Trade Receivables are stated after writing off debts considered as bad. Adequate Provision is made for debts considerad doubtful.

r} Employee Benefits:

{i) Short term employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholiy within twelve months of rendering the service are classifled as short term employee benefits and
they are recognised in the peried in which the employee renders the related service, The Group recognises the undiscounted amount of
short term employee benefits expected to be paid In exchange for services rendered as a liability {accrued expense) after deducting any
amount already paid.

{ii) Post-employment benefits:
a. Defined Contribution Plan:

Employea benefit in the form of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and
the contributions is charged to the Statemant of Profit and Loss of the period when the contributions to the respective funds is due.

The Group contributes to the government administered provident fund on behalf of Its employee.

The eligible employees of the Group are entitled to receive post-employment benefits in respect of provident fund, in which both the
employees and the Group make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the employees eligible salary (currently 12% of
employees eligible salary), The contributions made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner are charged to statement of profit and
loss. Since the Group has no further obligations beyond making contribution, such employee benefit plan is classified as Defined
Contribution Plan.

b, Defined Benefit Plan:

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides a lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15
days salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, Vesting occurs upon completion of five years
of service, )




Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

The Group pravides for gratuity benefits payable in future using Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation being carried out at
the end of the year by an independent external actuary. Actuarial gains and [osses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

c. Other long-term employee benefits — compensated absences
The Group provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave
subject to certain limits for future encashment/ avallment.

The Group makes pravision for such accumulated leaves using the Prajected Unit Credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out
at each Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary,

s} Research and Development

Research and development expenditure of a revenue nature is expensed out under the respective heads of accounts in the year in which it
is incurred.

Fixed Assets utilised for research and development are capitalised and depreclated in accordance with the policies stated for Property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets.

t} Gowvernment Grant and Subsidies

Grants in the nature of subsidy which are non-refundable are ¢redited to the statement of profit and |oss, on accrual basis, where there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with all the necessary conditions attached te them. Grants in the nature of subsidy which
are refundable are shown as liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

u} Provision for Taxation:

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in accordance with the
Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable
Income for the period.

The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates and tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The deferred tax asset in respect of holding company and step down subsidiary is not recognised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where
there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised oniy if there is a virtual
certainty of realisation of such assets, Defarred tax assets are reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realisation.

v} Provisions and Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets:
The Group creates a provision when there exists a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an cutflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability Is made when thera is a

{i) possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the controf of the Group.

{ii} present obligations that arises from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
abligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the cbligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be
realised.

w} Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, bonus element in a rights issue and shares split that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resaurces, For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

%) Sepment Reporting:

The Accounting Policias adopted for segment reporting are in line with the Accounting Policies of the Group, Segment assets Include all
operating assets used by the business segmeants and consist principally of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, receivables and
inventories, Segment liabilities include the Operating liabilities that result from the operating activities of the business. Segment assets and
liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as part of unallocated corporate assets and liabilities respectively.
Income f Expenses relating to the Group as whole and not allocable on a reasonable basis to business segments are reflected as
unallocated corporate income f expenses.




3 Share Capital [INR in lakhs]
As at 315t March, 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Authorised Shares
62,60,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- sach 626.00 §26.00
(Previous year : 62,60,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each)
80,00,000 Preference Shares of INR 10/- each 800.00 800.00
[Previous year : 80,00,000 Preference Shares of INR 10/- each)
20,00,000 Preference Shares of INR 10/- each 200.00 200.00
[Previous year : 20,00,000 Preference Shares of INR 10/- each)
150 Preference Shares of INR 100/- each 0,15 Q.15
[Previous year : 150 Preference Shares of INR 100/~ each)
250 Non -Cumulative-Redeemalsle Preference shares of INR 100/- each 0.25 0.25
{Previous year : 250 Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of
|INR 100/- each)
1,626.40 1,626.40
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up:
14,21,584 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up 142.16 142.16
. [Previcus Year 14,21,584 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each|
142.16 142.16
a Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
|equity Shares As at 31st March, 2023 As at 315t March, 2022
Nao. of Shares INR in lakhs No. of Shares INR in lakhs
At the beginning of the year 1,421,584 142.16 1,421,584 142.16
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 1,421,584 142.16 1,421,584 132.16
b Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par of INR 10/- per share. Each helder of eqguity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company has not
declared any dividend during the year. In the event of liquidation of the campany, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of eguity shares held by the shareholders.
¢ Shareholders holding moere than 5% shares in the Company
Name of Sharcholders As at 31st March, 2023 Az at 31st March, 2022
No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
. |Equity Shares
Ashwin Suryakant Dani & Ina Ashwin Dani as Trustees of Inaashwin Trus) 13,37,898 94.11 13,37,898 94.11
Ashwin S. Dani 83,685 5.89 83,685 5.89

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

As per recards of the company, including its reglster of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares,

d There is no buy back/ bonus shares issuaed during the period of five years immediately preceeding reporting data.
e  Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
% Change during the]
Promoter name No, of Shares %of tatal shares nl:ear &
Ashwin Suryakant Dani & Ina Ashwin Dani as Trustees of Inaashwin Trust 13,37,898 94.11% Q.00%
Ashwin 5, Dani 83,685 5.59% 0.00%
Ina A. Dani 1 0.00% 0.00%
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4 Reserves and Surplus _ [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Capital Reserve 50.02 50.02
Capital Redemption Reserve
As per last balance sheet 3,337.08 2,591.84
Add: Transfer during the year on redemption of preference shares - 745.24
3,337.08 3,337.08
Capital Reserve (On Amalagamation) 30,725.74 30,725.74
Capital Reserve {On Consolidation) 552.90 552.90
Capital Reserve (Current Investments) 67,347.93 67,347.93
Equity Shares Premium 3,410.54 3.410.54
Generai Reserve 1,345.61 1,345.61
Special Reserve 658.40 658.40
Revaluation Reserve
As per last balance sheet 87.54 92.68
Less: Written back in previous years (Refer note 13A) {4.86} {5.14)
82.68 87.54
Statutory Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,410.13 11,521.79
Add: Transfer from staterment of profit and loss 1,059.57 888.34
Balance at the end of the year 13,469.70 12,410.13
Balance in statement of profit and loss
As per last balance sheet {8,628.80) (15.846.79)
Profit/ [Loss) for the year 7,837.91 8,851.57
(790.89) {6,995.22)
Less: Appropriations _
Transfer to capital redemption reserve on redemption of preference shares - {745.24)L
Transferred to Statutory Reserve {1,059.57) {888.34)
{1,850.46} {8,628.80)
1,19,130.14 1,11,297.09
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{a)
(i)
{ii)
(i)
(iv)

{b}
(i)

{ii)

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Long -Term Borrowings [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Secured
Term loans
Loans from Financial Institutions (Refer note (a) below} 22,500.00 29,000.00
Rupee loans from Banks {Refer note {b) below) 2,725.00 5,461.24
Working Capital Loan under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme 1,056.41 1,400.00
{Refer note (c) below}
20,281.41 35,861.29
Less: Current Maturity of Long term Borrowings {24,777.13) (32,078.06)] .
1,504.28 3,783.18

Notes:
Loans from Financial institutions

Loans from Financial Institutions carry interest rate of 7.80 % to 9.05 % p.a. and repayable within 1 to 5 years from the

date of disbursement.

Put / Call dates for the term loans are falling due within 12 months from the date of balance sheet

There were na defaults as on the balance sheet date in repayment of principal and interest.
The borrowings are secured by pledging 21,456,000 (previous year 38,56,500) Shares of Asian Paints Limited.

Rupee loans from banks

Rupee Term Loan from Bank INR Nil lakhs {March 31, 2022 ; INR 811.24 lakhs}
Term loan from HDFC Bank was repayable in 16 quarterly instalments over a period of five years in¢luding a moratorium of
one year commencing from the date of first draw down. The loan carries interest based on One year Marginal Cost of
Lending Rate (MCLR) {adjustable annually) plus Nil spread.The present effective rate of interest is 7.25 % p.a. (Previous
year 7.20%). The loan has been repaid during the current year including the morotorium of loan and interest availed

during the covid period based on RBI regulations.

Rupee Term Loan from Bank INR 1,125 lakhs {March 31, 2022: INR 2,250 lakhs)
Term loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank is repayable in 16 quarterly instalments over a period of six years including a
moratorium of two years commencing fram the date of initial draw down. The draw down up to April 2018, of INR 2,700
lakhs is at fixed interest rate of 8.35 % p.a whereas the subsequent tranches are based on MCLR rates which averaged to
8.05 % p-a. (Previous year 7.08 % p.a.). The loan is secured by exclusive first charge on present and future movable fixed

assets and mortgage of land and building situated at Mysuru.




{iii)

{c)

(d}

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Rupee Term Loan from Bank INR 1,600 lakhs {(March 31, 2022: INR 2,400 lakhs)

Term loan from HOFC Bank is repayable in 16 quarterly instalments over a period of six years including a moratorium of
two year commencing from the date of draw down. The loan carries interest based on One year Marginal Cost of Lending
Rate {MCLR) {adjustable annually) plus Nil spread. The present effective rate of interest is 7.25 % p.a. {Previous year
7.20%). The loan is secured by exclusive first charge on plant & machinery and charge on immovable fixed assets
comprising of land and building at Vizag.

Working Capital Loan under Emergency Credit line Guarantee Scheme from Bank INR 1,056.41 |akhs { March 31, 2022:
INR 1,400 lakhs)

Working capital loan from HDFC Bank under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) announced by the
Government of India is repayable over 5 years in 48 manthly instalments {including moratorium of one year). The loan
carries interest based on External Benchmark Lending Rate (EBLR) (adjustable every 3 months or at such intervals as
permissible under RBI guidelines) plus 2.75% spread. The present effective rate of interest is 9.00% p.a.{Previous year
6.75% p.a.) The facility is covered by 100% guarantee from National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Ltd {(Ministry of
Finance, Government of India) and an extention of second ranking charge over existing primary and colfateral securities
including mortgages created in favour of the bank.

There are no defaults in repayment of principal and interest.
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Deferred Tax Liabilities [Net]

One of the subsidiary company has recognised deferred tax liability arising on acceunt of timing differences, being the difference between the taxable income and accounting
income, that originates in ane period and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent pericd(s) in compliance with Accounting Standard {AS 22) - Accounting for Taxes on

incame.

The major compenents of deferred tax {liabilities)/assets arising on acceunt of timing differences as at March 31, 2023 are as follows:

[INR in lakhs]

As at 31st March, As at 315t March,
2023 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Diffarence between Written Down Value of fixed assets as
par the books of accounts and income Tax Act, 1961 B41.20 739.29
Total deferred tax liabilities 641.20 739.29
Deferred tax asset
Expense allowed for tax purpose on payment basis |287.94) [341.07)
Provision for doubtful debts and advances |87.99) {78.83)
Totat deferred tax assets {375.93) [413.90]
Net Beferred tax Uability 265.27 315.39
7 Other Long-term Liabilities [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, As at 315t March,
023 2022
Securlty Deposits 25.50 25.50
25,50 25.50
8 Long Term Provisions [INR in lakhs)
As at 315t March, As at 315t March,
2023 2022
Provision for gratuity {Refer note 43) 357.50 280.63
Provision for compensated absences {Refer note 43) 261.90 235.33
659.40 519.96
9  Short -Term Borrowings {INR in lakhs)
Az at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Secured
Cash credits from Banks (Refer Note 3 and b below) £85.12 42.68
Working Capital Demand loan (Refer Note a and b balow) 1,901.92 2,400.00
Unsecured
Corporata Card (Refer Mote (c] below) 130.36 291.70
Currant Maturity of Long term barrowings {Refer note 5 (a) and (b)) 24,777.13 32,078.06
27,50B.53 34,318.49

MNotes:

{a) Working capital facilities including cash credit from banks are secured on first charge basis by way of hypothecation of inventories and baok debts of specific units and collaterally
secured by hypothecation of specific plant and machinery and equitable morigage on land and building of specific units. The borrowings carries interest @ 6.75% to 8.70% pa. {
Previous year 6.75% to B.25% p.a).

{b)  Working capital facllities includes the overdraft facility of Holding Company from HDFC bank amounting ta INR 1,065.50 lakhs carrying interest rate of approx. @ 7.57% p.a.
{Previous year 5.63% p.a.). The Outstanding balance is INR 395,10 lacs (Previous year INR Nil}. The facility is securad against the fixed deposits kept with the bank, amounting to INR
1,119.76 lakhs (Previouws year INR 1,098.46 iakhs).

{¢) Corporate card is unsecured facility provided by the banks repayable within 45 days for a convenienca fee 0.78 % and 51 days for a convenience fee 0.95% (previous year 0.95%)

respectively. Tha facility is used for making vendor and tax paymants.

(] Thereis no default In repaymant of principal and interest as on balance sheet date.

10 Trade Payables

(INR in takhs]

As at 31st March, As at 215y March,
2023 2022
Trade Payables
|i} Total outstanding dues ta micro and small enterprises 33733 445.98
[} Total outstanding dues te ¢reditors other than (i) above 2,351.29 3,077.97
2,6B8.62 3,524.95
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Trade payables aging as at 31st March, 2023 [{NR in lakhs}
. [+] ling for follewing perfods from the date of transaction
Particulars
Less than 1 years 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME 337.33 - - - 337.33
Othars 2,163.18 6.41 149.02 32.68 2,351.29
Disputed dues {MSMEs) -
Disputed dues {Others) -
Total 2,500.51 641 139.02 3268 2,688.62
Trade payables aging as at 31st March, 2022 [INR in lakhz)
particulars Qutstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Less than 1 years 1-2 years 2-1 years More than 3 years Total
MSME 446.598 - - - 446.98
Others 2,888.04 144.59 14.88 30.46 3,077.97
Disputed dues {MSMEs) - - - - -
Disp ] dues {Others) - - - - -
Total 3,335.02 144.59 14.85 30.46 3,524.95
Other Current Liabilities [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, As at 315t March,
2023 2022
Other Liabilities
Interest accrued but not due 124.10 181.55
Unclaimed Dividend 13.79 18.03
Advances Recelved from Customer 110 86.50
VYendor for Capltal expenditure 76.76 89.15
Payable towards statutory duas 140.18 219.97
Empioyee Benefits Payable 314.59 420.04
Other currant liabilitias 51.53 40.84
Other Payables 26.40 §3.20
768.45 1,139.69
Note:

There are no ts due and ol

Short Term Provisions

ding ta be credited to Investor Education Protection Fund in accordance with Section 125 of the Companies Act 2013 as at the year end.

[INR in lakhs]

As at 31st March, As at 315t March,
2023 2022
[al Provision for employee benefits :
Provision for compensated absences [Refer note 43) 7205 59.27
Prevision for gratuity (Refer nota 43) 134.09 113.56
[b] Other provisions :
Provision for indirect tax and other matter {Refer note 38) 109.09 128.40
Provision far Income Tax {Net of Advance Tax) 40,23 91.75
Provision for employes benefts 88.82 115.23
444.28 508.21
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GEETANJALI TRADING AND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

13C CWIP aging schedule

CWIP aging schedule as on 31st March 2023

Less than | 1-2 2-3 More than 3
CwIP 1 year years years years Total
CWIP - Moulds 597.52 - - 597.52
CWIP - Other Fixed Assets 3.00 - - 3.00
CWIP - Other Plant & Machinery 34.77 8.04 - 42.81
Total 635.29 8.04 - 643.33
CWIP aging schedule as on 31st March 2022

Less than | 1-2 2-3 More than 3
CWIP 1year years years years Total
CWIP - Moulds 100.69 8.82 - 109.51
CWIP - Other Fixed Assets 0.16 - - 0.16
CWIP - Other Plant & Machinery 100.92 - - 100.92
Total 20177 8.82 - 210.59
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14 Naon Current Investments

Name of the Body Corporate As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
No. of Shares / Amount No. of Shares / Amount
Units {INR In lakhs) Units {INR in lakhs)

Trade Investments (valued at cost)
Investment Property
Leasehold Land {Reclassified from PPE)

Gross carrying value - 285.15 - 285.15
Less: Accumutated depreciation - {37.06) {37.06)
248.09 248.09
Building (Reclassified from PPE)
Gross carrying value - 1,269.81 - 1,269.21
Less: Accumulated depreciation - [809.37) - [772.41)
- A60.44 - 49740
Total Investment Property 708.53 745.49

Other Investments (valued at cost}

Investment Property
(a) Property at Worli - Tenancy rights - 3.30 - 330
(b} Premises - 21,15 - 21.15
[c} Home villa Co-op Housing Society Limited

[Equity share of INR 50/- each] - -

Total Investment Property 24.45 24.45

Quoted [fully paid up)

Investment in Equity Shares:

- In Company in which Directors and their relatives

are able to exercise significant influence
{a) Asian Paints Limited {Refer Note {a} below} 1,33,77,100 12,138.84 1,33,77,100 12,138.84
[Face value of INR 1/- each ]

Investment in Mutual Fund
{a) HSBC Cash Fund (Growth Plan) 2,583.940 44,52 2,583.940 4453

Unguoted {fully paid u
fnvestment in Eguity shares:

- In Company in which Directors and their relatives
are able to exercise significant influence

(a) Resins and Plastics Limited 2,311,901 213.19 2,31,90 203.44

- in other companies

{a} Express Resorts & Hotels Limited 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

[face value of INR 10/- each)

{b) HO Plast Private Limited

{face vafue of INR 100/- each) 30,000 30.00 30,000 30.00
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investmeant (30.00) (30.00)
Fixed Deposit with Housing Development Finance Corporation 775.00 700.00
13,909.53 13,861.74
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments 12,183.36 12,183.36
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 3,65,486.23 4,12,062.43
Aggregate carrying value of ungueoted investments 1,726.17 1,678.38

* denotes less than INR 1 thousand

a. Investment Pledged against Borrowings
Of the above tnvestments 21,46,000 shares [Previous Year 38,54,000 shares) are pledged against Borrowings.
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17

Deferred Tax Assets [Net] [INR in Jakhs]
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Provision for expense allowed for tax purpeses on payment basis 140.97 134.00
Difference hetween written down value of fixed assets as per the bocks of
accounts and Income tax act, 1961 23.96 28.47
154.93 162.47
Tax on above 41.51 40.89
41.51 40.89
Long Term -Loans and advances [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March,
2023 2022
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Capital Advances 388.15 110.29
Subsidy receivable from State Government
Considered good 73.93 34.83
Considered Doubtful 99.23 137.31
173.16 172.14
Less: Provision for doubtful advances {99.23) {137.31)
73.93 34.83
Balance with statutory /Government Authorities
Considered good 4.84 33.27
Considered Doubtful 76.94 22451
8178 257.78
Less: Provision for doubtful advances {76.94) {224.51)
4.84 3327
Advance income tax [Net of provision for taxation] 569.43 836.34
Advances recoverable in cash ar in kind or for value to be received 4101 36.12
Prepaid Expenses 27.02 24.03
1,504.38 1,075.38
Other Non-Current Assets [INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Security deposits
Considered good 710.49 678.45
Considered Doubtful 1.00 1.00
711.49 679.45
Less: Provision for daubtful advances {1.00} {1.00}
710.48 678.45
Unsecured, considered good uniess otherwise stated
Leng term bank deposits with maturity greater than one year 16.63 3141
{Refer note below)
727.12 709.B6

Note:

Of the above deposits !NR 1.65 lakhs {315t March 2022 INR 1.82 lakhs) is kept under lien with sales tax authorities.




18 Non current assets held for sale [INR in lakhs]

As at 31st March, As at 315t March,

2023 2022
Freehold Land 18.71 95.61
Leaseholg Building 15.45 15.45
Building 22.02 22.02
56.18 133.08

Note:
1. the Subsidiary company intends to dispose off land and building in next 12 months, which is vacant and unutilised, No
impairment loss has been recognised on reclassification of such assets held for sale, as the subsidiary company expects
that fair value less costs are higher than related carrying amounts.

2. During the Previous year the subsidiary company sold ene of property at Naroli. The profit on sale amounting te INR
796.04 takhs has been considered as an exceptional item being & non-recurring event,
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19 CURRENT INVESTMENTS:

[INR in lakhs]
Name of the Body Corporate As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
No. of Shares / Amount MNo. of Shares / Amount
units {INR in lakhs) units {INR in 1akhs)
‘Quoted {fully paid up}
Investment in Equity Shares: (numbers)
- in Company in which Directors and its relatives
are able to exercise significant influence
Asian Paints Limited {Refer Note {a) below} 3,23,29,040 1,04,595.39 3,23,29,040 1,04,596.38
[Face value INR 1/- each ]
Unguoted (fully paid u
Investments in Equity Shares: (numbers)
- in Company in which Directors and its relatives
are able to exercise signiflcant influence
{a) Gujarat Organics Limited {Face value INR 10/- each) 951 0.04 951 0.04]
{b) Resins And Plastics Limited (Face value INR 10/~ each) 1,04,233 31.27 1,04,233 31,27
Unquoted {fully paid up)
Investments in Mutual Funds {units)
i) HOFC Uitra Short Term Fund - Direct Growth - - 24,17,459.77 300.00
ii) HOFC Liquid Fund-Direct Plan-Growth Option 23,137.89 1016.84 4,780.60 200.00
Fixed Deposit with Housing Developrnent Finance Corporation
Ltd 975.00 -
1,06,619.54 1,05,127.70
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments 1,04,596.39 1,04,596.39
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 8,92,814.93 §,95,718.27
Aggregate carrying value of unguoted investments 2,023.15 531.31

a. Investment Pledged against Borrowings:

Of the ahove Investments Nil shares [Previous Year 2,500 shares] are pledged against Borrowings.
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20 Inventories

[INR in lakhs]
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
{Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw Materials 2,342.04 2,651.12
Work-in-progress 1,223.66 1,542.53
Finished Goods (including Goods in Transit INR 110.28 lakhs 156.36 142.15
(March 31, 2022: INR 91.14 lakhs)
Stock in trade 1,333.03 1,495.75
Consumables, Stores and spares 25.98 22,94
5,081.07 5,854.49

Note:

i} Inventory of INR 3748.04 lakhs (Previous year INR 4358.74 |lakhs) are hypothicated against secured

borrowings

ii} The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes INR 19.20 lakhs {(Previous year INR 29.97 lakhs)

in respect of write down of inventory to net realisable value.

21 Trade Receivables

[INR in {akhs]
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Considered good £,131.79 7,588.36
Considered Doubtful 442.70 580.93
6,574.49 8,165.29
Less: Provisicn for Doubtful receivables (442.70) (580.93)
6,131.79 7,588.36
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There are no unbilled receivables as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022.

Trade receivables aging as at 31st March, 2023

{IMNR in lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 6 12 2.3 More
Not Due manths - than 3 Total
6 months years years
1 year years
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 3,164.42 | 2,511.79 52.16 1.11 108 1.22| 613179
{ii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — Considered doubtful 6.65 16.73 8.04 6.73 5.08 07.07 110.30
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considerad doubtful - - - - - 332.40 332.40
Total 3,171.07 | 2,928.52 60,20 7.84 6.17 | 400.69 | 6,574.49
Less: Provision for Doubtful receivables {442.70)
6,131.79
Trade receivables aging as at 31st March, 2022 {INR in lakhs]

Qutstanding for following perlods from due date of payment

g Mare
Particulars Not Due Less than manths - 1-2 23 than 3 Total
6 months years years
1 year years
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered goad 3,729.45| 3,8303.5101 117.73 6.09 42.10 2.81| 7,701.68
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — Considered daubtful 12.30 4.31 28.11 33.83 56.65 135.20
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - -
{iv} Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered doubtful - - - - 332.40 332,40
Total 3,729.45 | 3,815.81 | 122.04 34.20 75.93 | 391.86| 8,169.29
Less: Provision for Doubtfui receivables {580.93)
7,588.36
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Cash and Bank Balances
[INR in kakhs]
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Cash and cash eguivalents
Balances with bank
- in current account 300.09 292.07
- in deposit account with maturity less than or equal to 3 months 5.33 1,042.10
Cash on hand 3.44 5.95
308.86 1,340.16
Other Bank balances:
- Balances with banks in unpaid dividend accounts {Refer note a) 13.79 18.03
-Bank Deposits with original maturity more than 3 menths but less than 12 507.09 1,444.41
months {Refer note b below)
- Bank Deposits with balance maturity more than 12 months 615.76 0.50
1,140.64 1,462.94
1,443.5Q 2,803.10

Note:
Bank deposits includes

a) The subsidiary company can utilise this balance only towards settlement of unclaimed dividend
b) Bank Deposits of INR 1,119.76 Lakhs {Previous Year 1098.46 Lakhs) held under lien towards security for overdraft facility

issued by HDFC bank.

Short Term Loans and Advances

{INR in lakhs]

As at 315t March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 127.21 44.73
Prepaid Expensas 223.16 192 .86
Loans / advances to employees 1.78 439
Advance to Vendar 55.66 92.41
Balances with government authorities 74.36 20.82

482.17 364.22
Other Current Assets

[INR in lakhs]
As at 315t March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022

Unsecured, cansldered good unless otherwlse stated
Interest Income receivable 40.00 316.01
Quantity Discount receivable 347.40 166.17
Compensation Receivable on Land acquisition 317.23 -
Prepaid Expenses 814 9.72
Advance tax {net of provision for tax) 25.56 29.56
Receivabie from group companies 5.43 -

74376 241.46
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Revenue from Operation
[INR in lakhs]
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Sale of Products ;
Sales - Trading 14,056.71 16,680.82
Sales- Finished goods £5,653.58 £62,348.03
‘Other operating revenues ;
Scrap sales 140.89 204.91
wind Mill Income 52.59 55.75
Subsidy from state government (Refer note 39) 20.36 -
Job Work - 42.74
Revenue from services :
1 Cornmission 445,37 387.07
Dividend receiw
[i] From Non Current Investments
- from Company in which Directors and its relatives are able
to exercise significant influence 9,115.75 8,314.21
Interest income
- from fixed deposits 81.95 105.39
79,567.20 88,138.91
Other Income
[INR in lakhs]
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest on bank deposits
- on bank deposits 11591 25.7a
- on Cthers 15.43 9.66
- on Compensation received {refer note 34{a} below) 31.10 -
Profit on sale of Investments 15.46 015
Profit on sale of fixed assets 68.68 33.85
Excess provision against standard assets written back - 141.81
Excess provision for stocks written back - 46,56
Sundry balances written back 52.10 16.26
Net gain on Foreign currency transaction and translations {other than considered - 47,10
as finance cost)
Rental income 40.21 37.80
Miscellaneous Income 3.55 1.89
346.44 360.82
Cost of materlal Consumed
{INR in lakhs]
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Inventory at the beginning of the year 2,651.12 2,479.4]
Add: Purchases 34,395.37 40,190.85
37,046.49 42,670.26
Less: Inventary at the end of the year 2,342.04 2,963.38
34,704.45 39,706.88
Purchases of stock-in-trade

[INR in lakhs]

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Chemical 12,103.55 14,871.20
12,103.55 14 87120
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29 Changes in Inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

[INR in lakhs]
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Inventories at the beginning of the year ’
Finished goods 142.15 157.41
Waork-in-progress 1,542.53 1,520.54
Stock-in-trade 1,495.75 1,124.04
Total [A] 3,180.43 2,801.98
Less: Inventory of company which ceased to be a subsidiary & excluded from - 191.52
consolidation (B)
Inventeries at the end of the year
Finished goods 156.36 142.15
Work-in-progress 1,223.66 1,542.53
Stock-in-trade 1,333.03 1,495.75
Total [C] 2,713.05 3,180.43
Total [A-B-C] 467.39 i{569.96)
467.39 {569.96)
30 Employee Benefit Expenses
{INR int lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Szlary, bonus and other allowances 3,497.01 3,476.47
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 363.77 401.82
Staff welfare expenses 332.71 265.44
4,193.49 4,143.74
31 Finance Cost
[INR in lakhs]
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest on term loan borrowings 2,246.58 2,809.26
Interest on Others 15.77 19.14
Interest on cash credit and short term borrowings 156.61 279.88
interest on Statutory payments
Custom duty 0.17 2.09
Income tax 3.09 7.56
Cthers 2.66 0.01
Bill Discounting Charges 748.88 656.76
3,173.76 3,774.70
32 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
[INR in lakhs]
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 2,710.08 2,922.51
Depreciation on investment property 36.96 39.38
Depreciation on intangible assets 9.55 12.86
2,756.59 2,974.75
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33 Manufacturing, Operating and other Administrative expenses

[INR in lakhs]
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Manufacturing Expenses :
Labour Charges/ Processing Charges 335.18 830.52
Consumpticn of stores, spares and consumables 854.46 740.15
Water, Power & Fue! 2,839.39 2,675.53
Material Handling charges 2,719.95 2,216.84
Repairs to building 56.03 24.05
Repairs to Plant and Machinery 241.88 236.63
Repairs to other assets 159.19 143.42
Selling & Distribution expenses :
Advertisement and Sales Promotion Expenses 67.18 2.99
Freight & handling charges 996.80 1,119.25
Warehousing & distribution expenses 344.18 29268
Establishment expenses :
Rent Paid 13.50 25.63
Rates & taxes 47.41 135.38
Goods and services tax 31.80 57.91
Insurance Expenses 305.89 279.67
Legal, Consultancy and Professional Expenses 690.11 825.74
Security Charges 251.32 236.68
Printing & Stationary 13.60 11.25
Electricity Expenses 21.44 18.23
Directors' sitting fees 292.74 194.53
Commission to Non Executive Directors 20.00 15.00
Payment to Auditors
- Audit fees 35.00 33.18
- For ather audit services 2.38 14.86
- Out of Pocket Expenses 1.41 3.68
Travelling and conveyance expenses 341.05 479.58
Vehicle Expenses 7.97 12.28
Loss on sale of fong term investments - 65.54
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 2.34
Housekeeping exp 171.44 121.47
Provision for doubtful debts written back {166.41) -
Provision for doubtful advances [net) - 173.25
Bad debts written off 22.60 214.80
Foreign Exchange differences (Net} 117.95 3.18
Corporate social responsibility expenses {Refer note 47) 67.20 48.07
Miscellaneous Expenses 305.82 34751
Leans and advances written off 147.52 106.14
(Reversal) / Provision for doubtful Loans and Advances (Taxes Recoverable) {147.52) -
{Reversal) / Provision for doubtful Loans and Advances [Subsidy Receivable) {38.13) -
Provision for diminution in long term investments - {670.52)
11,174.33 11,037.44
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Exceptional items

{INR in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
. . 380.61
Compensation under compulsory acquisition (Refer note (a) below) ]
" |Gain on sale of property {Refer note {b) below) - 796.04
380.61 796.04

{a) During the current financial year , the Company has received the Orders passed by the Land Acquisition, Rehabilitation &
Resettlement Authority, O & N. H., Silvassa under the Right to Fzir Compensation and Transparency in Land Acquisition,
Rehabilitation and Resettlement Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), towards Compensation for compulsory acquisition of Land under the Act,
for a sum of INR 485.97 Lakhs, including interest thereon of INR 31.10 Lakhs. The Company has received a sum of iNR 168,75
takhs as on the balance sheet date and the balance INR 317.23 Lakhs has been disclosed as ‘Compensation receivable on Land
acquisition” under Note 6 ‘Other Financial Assets’ to the financiai statements, which has been received subsequent to the
Balance Sheet date.

The Exceptional income thereon amounting to INR 380.61 Lakhs represents the excess of the compensation amount {net of
interest) over the related carrying cost of Asset held for Sale.

{b) During the previous financial year, the Company sold one of the property at Naroli. The profit on sale of property amounting
to INR 796.04 lakhs being a non-recurring event has been considered as an exceptional item.

Extraordinary Items

{INR in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for unauthorised payments by ex Whole time director of a subsidairy - 175.00
company
Insurance claim received {Refer note i} - {198.05)
- {23.05)

i. During the previous financial year, a sum of Rs. 198.05 lakhs has been received by the subsidiary company from insurance
company in full and final settlement of its claim for damaged stock, repair costs and procurement of certain assets for loss due
to flood ar Baddi plant during the year 2019-20. This being non recurring event has been considered as an exceptional item.
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Earning Per Share

Year ended Year endaed
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net Profit After Tax {INR In lakhs) 7,837.91 8,851.57
Less:- Preference Dividend {INR In lakhs}) - -
Amount available for equity share holders (INR In lakhs) 7,837.91 8,851.57
Weighted average number of equity shares 14,21,584 14,21,584
Earning per equity share:
-Basic {INR}) 551.35 622.66
-Diluted {INR) 551.35 622.66
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Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

[a] Contingent Liabilities :

{INR in lakhs)
. e Year ended Year ended
Contingent Liabilities March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts
1] Direct Tax matters in dispute under appeal 328.42 799.33
2] Indirect Tax matters in dispute under appeal 54.35 127.98
3] Bill of exchange discounted with banks 6,974.76 2,641.56
{Since realised {NR 2816.73 Lakhs till May 16, 2022 (Previcus year INR 1,522.48
lakhs}}
4] Bank guarantees 56.50 56.50
[b] Commitments :
{INR in lakhs)
Commitments Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Estimated amount of contracts {net of advances) remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for. (Gross of advances Mar 31, 2023 INR 826.68 203.49
265.56 lakhs, March 31, 2022 INR 313.78 lakhs}
2] The Forward exchange contract outstanding™ 167.73 130.13

* the Subsidiary company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge against its foreign currency exposures relating to

ungerlying transactions derivative instruments for trading or specuiative purposes.

[¢] Other Matters :

The Code on Social Security, 2020 {‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment received
Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the
Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and

will record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes effective.

Disclosure under AS-29 'Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

{INR in lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 128.40 96.40
Addition 16.97 55.19
Utilisations {19.91) {1.77)
Reversals {16.37) (21.42)
Closing Balance 109.09 128.40
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39 Cne of the subsidiary was eligible for Industrial Promotion Subsidy under the Package Scheme of Incentive {PSI) 2007 upto 31st March,2019. The

movement in the amount receivable is as under:

Opening balance of subsidy recaivable
Less: Additianal claimed

Less: Allowance for doubtfull recetvable
Less : Subsidy received in cash

Closing balance of subsidy receivable

A0 Foreign Currency Exposure

4

-

As at 31st Mareh,  As at 31st March,
2023 2022
34.83 172.14
20.36 -
35.08 (137.31)
{139.34) -
73.93 34.53

One of the subsidiary enters into forward exchange contracts to hedge against its forgign currency exposures relating te the undarying transactions
and firm commitments. it does not enter inta any derivative instruments for trading or speculative purpases. During the year, it has not entered inte

any forward exchange contract.

The foreign currency (FC) exposure not hedged are as under :

{in FC) {INR In takhs)
Currency Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Payable
UsD - 40,000 - 29.72
Receivable
uUso 8,641 16,857 7.12 12.26

Disclosura pursuant to Accounting Standard {AS — 19} Lease

Assets taken on pperating lease

a) The subsidiaries have taken certain assets such as cars, software and premises on an opéerating lease basis. The lease rentals are payable on monthly

b)

basis.

Future minimum lease rentals payable as per the lease agreements:

{INR in lakhs
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Not later than one year 245,24 332432
Later than one year but not more than five years 165.56 28167
Later than five years - -

¢} Leasa payments recognised in the Statament of Profit and Loss for the year ara INR 341.80 lakhs {Previous Year INR 297.40 lakhs).

42 Disclosure under the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for the year 2022-23, to the extent the

a

b

4]

d

¢}

Company has received intimation from the “Suppliers” regarding their status under the Act.

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay

in making payment which have been paid but, beyond the

Principal amount remaining unpaid [but within due date as per the MSMED Act) at the end of the
financial year

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid

The amount of interest paid u/fs 16 of MSMED Act Act, along with the amounts of payments made to the
supplier bayond the appointed day during each atcounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment which have been
paid but, beyond the appointed day during the year

The amount accrugd and remalning unpaid at the end of each accounting perlod; Le., principal is paid
but interest has remainad unpaid

The ampunt of further interest r ing due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as abave are actually paid to small enterprise, this is reguired for the purpose of

337,

33

H

Nil

il

Nil

Nil

A46.98

Nil

Nii

Nil

Nil

Nil
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43 Employee Benefits

i Short Term Employment Benefits
‘The liability towards short-term employee benefits is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss every year,

il Post Employment Berefits
a Pefined Contribution Plan
Provident Fund and Employee State insurance Scheme
Defined contribution plans are Provident Fund Scheme and Employee State Insurance Scheme. The Group contributes to the Gowernment

administered provident funds on behalf of its employees. The Group has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss under
contribution to provident and cther funds under 'Empioyee Benefit Expenses.'

{INR In lakhs)
R As at 315t March, | As at 31st March,
Particulars 2023 2022
Employers Contribution to Provident Fund including Family 213.02 205.17
Pension Fund & ESIC
b Defined Benefit plan - Gratuity
The amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at year end are as under:
{INR in lakhs}
Gratuity Unfunded/ Funded
Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 315t March,
2023 2022
Change in Present Value of Dbligations
Opening deflned benefit obligation as at 1st April 836.87 H08.55
Currant Service Cost 66.71 60.41
Interest Cost 53.91 '50.29
Met Liability Transfer in - 0.58
Acturial Loss on obligation for the period 40.70 §52.53
Benefits Paid {50.26) {72.13)
Transferred on account of sale of Subsidiary - 109.75)
Closing defined benefit abligation as at 315t March 947.93 836.87
Change in Fair Value of Plan Asssts
Opening fair value of plan assets as at 1st April 342 .68 354,25
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income {10.14) {4.22)
Interest Income 28.37 21.47
Contributions by Employer - 100.01
Renefits paid from the fund {44.57) (28.76)
Closing fair value of plan assets as at 31st March 416.34 442.68
Major catepory of Plan assets as a % of Total Plan Assets
Insured Managed Funds 100%: 100%
Amounts recognised In the Balance Sheet
Prasent Value of obligation at the end of the year [947.93) (836.87)
Fair Value of Plan Assets 416.34 442,68
Net Liability recognised in the balance sheet {531.59] {394.19)
A t recognised in the St of Profit and Loss
Acturial Losses on the cbligation for the period 40.68 0.58
Return on plan assets, excluding interest incomea 10.14 [354.25)
Current Service Cost 66.71 808.55
Interest en defined benefit obligation 25.54 £4.70
Taotal 143,07 519.58
Discounted Rate {per annum] F30% To7.49% | 6.06% Ta?.31%
Estimated Rate of return on Plan Assets {per annum] 7.30% G.41%
Mortality for domestic plan Indian Assured| Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality|
(2012-14) Urban] _ {2012-14] Urban
Rate of Escalation in Salary [per annum) 8% - 10% 5% - 10%
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Amount recognised in current and previous four financial years are as follows:

As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
Gratuity funded March, 2023 |March, 2022 |March, 2021 |March, 2020 |March, 2019
Present value of defined benefit obligation 878.83 776.66 618.83 561.85 618.96
plan asset 416.32 442.68 354.25 383.36 444 .77
{Defecit) {462.51) (333.08) (264.58) {178.49) (174.19)
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (loss) {37.73) {102.80) {32.54) {45.04) 22.44
Experience adjustment on plan assets [{loss)/ gain] 10.14 {4.29) 0.24 12.44 6.89

Asat31st |Asat3l1st |[Asat31st As at 31st As at 31st
Gratuity Unfunded March, 2023 |March, 2022 (March, 2021 [March, 2020 [March, 2019
Present value of defined benefit ohligation 69.10 60.21 185.72 55.21 75.96
plan asset - - - - -
Surplus / {defecit) (69.10} {60.21) {189.72) (55.21) {75.96)
Experience adjustment on plan habilities [{loss)/ gain] {3.05) 3.87 {10.62} {45.04}

22.44

Experience adjustment on plan assets [{loss)/ gain]

Notes:

a) The estimated of rate of escallation in salary considered in acturial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promation and
other relavant factors including supply and demand in employment market

b} The discounting rate is considered based on market yield of government bonds having currency and terms consistent with the
currency and terms of post employment benefit obiigation.

iii other long term benefits

the lability towards compansated absences as at 31st March 2023, based on acturial veluation carried out by using projected unit
credit method resulted in increase in liability to tNR 333.55 lakhs [As on 31st March, 2022 INR 298.60 Lakhs)
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Consplidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

44 Segment Reporting

{i) Primary Segp i ion - Business Segment
[IMR in lakhs)
2022-23 2021-22
Manufacturing | Trading & Investments | Total Manufacturing | Trading & Investments | Total
Particufars [Plastic) Manufatturing |& Others {Plastic) Manufacturin & Others
[Palnts and & (Painks and
chemicals chemicals

REVENUE
|Segment Revenue - External szles / Income 55,867.42 14,502.09 5,197.69 79,567.20 £8,845.52 20,873.80 8,419.59 88,138,951
from operations
tnter Ssgrment - - - - - - - -
TATAL REVENUE 55,867.42 14,502.09 9,197.69 79,567.20 58,845.52 20,873.80 B,419.59 88,138.91
RESULT
Segment Result 4,466.36 794.21 2,906.84 14,167.40 5,448.62 2,333.58 B,192.1% 15,974.85
Unallocated Expenses - - - - - - - -
Operating Profit 14,167.40 15,574.86
Finance Cast 3,173.76) {3, 774.70}
Other Non eperating Income 34594 36082
Exceptionzl Item 380.61 796.04
Extraordinary Item - 23.05
Income Taxes (2,015.88) {3,372.95)
Profit / {Loss} after tax £,704.81 10,007.12
QTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets a3,880.59 7,379.64 1,19,393.91 1,60,654.13 35,137.21 7.397.09 | 1,20.247.93 | 1,62,782.23
Unallocated Assets - - - - - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 33,880.59 7,379.64 1,19,3593.91 £,60,654.13 3513121 7,397.09| 1,20,24793 | 162,782.23
Segment Liabilities 9,544.24 1,287.80 23,032.29 33,864.33 13,435.52 201965 29,184.15 44,639.32
Unallocated Liabillties - - - - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,544.24 1,287.80 23,032.29 33,264.33 13,435.52 2,019.65 29,134.15 44,639.32
Cost incurred during the year te acquire 1,157.30 58.31 1.95 1,217.56 2,456.83 10.73 4,88 247244
capital assets
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 2,697.32 18.19 4.12 21,719.63 2,819.16 103,55 17.40 2,945.51
Non-cash expense ather than depreciation
- Prowision for bad and doubtful debts and {166.41} - - {166.41) 173.25 173.25
advances
- Bad debts writtencff 22.48 0,12 - 22.60 B89.22 125,58 214.80
- Loans and advances written off 147.52 - - 147.52 106.14 E 106.1%
- Loss on long term | £ - - - - - 1 65.54 §5.54




Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limlted
Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

45 Related Party Disclosures, as required by AS-18, ' Related Party Disclosures’ are given below:

{A) Name of related parties and nature of relationship: (with whom the Group Company had tians during the year}

i, Companies over which Directors and their relatives can exercise significant influence.

Asian Paints Limited

Asian Paints [Nepal} Private Limited

Asian Paints PPG Private Limited

PPG Asian Paints Private Limited

Mefree LLP [formerly Naradiya Commercial LLP]
Resins & Plastics Limited

Gujarat Organics Limited

Avinash Holding and Trading Company Private Limited
Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited [from 10th March 2022}
Sattva Holding and Trading Private Limited

Sab Ka Mangal Ho Foundation

Hitech insurance Broking Services Ltd

i- Directors

Mr. Ashwin Dani

Mrs. ina A. Dani

Mr. Harish N. Motiwalla

Mr. Bharat Gosalia {w.e.f 27th Sep 2021)

Key gement Per
Mr. Mukesh Dasai - CFQ and Principal officer {w.e.f 15t May 2021}
Mr. Bharat Gosalia - Principal Officer {upto 30th April 2021)

Mr. Prabhu Chettiyar - Company Secretary (upto 31st August 2022)
Mrs. Namita Tiwari - Company Secretary (w.e.f 1st June 2023)

iv. Relative of Directors

Mr. Malav A. Dani
Mr. Chirag Gosalia

(B} Transactions with related parties

{INR in lakhs)

Companies over which the Directors | Dlrectors / Relative of | Key Management
and their relatives can exercise Director Personnel
Particulars significant influence
22-23 21-22 22-23 21-22 22-23 21-22
Sale of Goods
Asian Paints Limited 40,368.16 45,345.22 - - -
PFG Asian Paints Private Limited 47.60 315442 - - - -
Asian Paints PPG Private Limited 4.33 .50 “ - - -
Paladin Paints & Chemicals Pyt Ltd 1.90 8.85 - - -
Purchase of Goads
Paladin Paints and Chernicals Private Limited 900.47 109.78 - - -
Dividend Received
Asian Paints Limited 9,095.52 8,295 66 - - - -
Resins & Plastics Limited 20.23 18.54 - - - -
Rent received
Paladin Paints and Chernicals Private Limited 3.13 0.09 - - - -
Hitech Insurance Broking Services Lid 8.15 7.55 - - - -
Satlva Holding & Trading Pvt Ltd 18.36 18.36 - - - -
interest received
Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited 5.25 0.07 - - - -
Purchase of Duty drawback 11,59 - - - - -
Paladin Paints & Chemlcals Pyt Ltd
Reimbursement of Freight Expenses
Paladin Paints & Chemicals Pvt Ltd 1.16 - - - -
Staff Welfare Exp
Mefree LLP 2.03 - - - - -




Note 44 {Continued)

Companies over which the Directors { Directors f Relative of | Key Management
and their relatives can exercise Clirectar Personnel

significant influence
2523 21-22 22-23 21-22 22-23 21-22

Particulars

Directors Sitting Fees
Mr. Ashwin Dani - - 2.30 3.00 -
Mrs. Ina A, Dani - - 1.75 0.50 -
Mr. Harish Motiwalla - - 1.75 0.50 -

Remuneration / Commission
Mr. Ashwin Dani 114.00 1.00 - -
Wirs. Ina A. Danl - - 107.00 142.00 - -
Mr. Malay A, Dani - - 85.38 85.00 - -
Mr. Bharat Gosalia - - 48.00 24.53 - 41.55
iMr. Bharat Gosalia {professianal fees) - - - B - 22.97
Mr. Chirag Gosalia 17.18 -
Mr. Prabhu Chettlyar - - - - 13.54 12.32
Mr. Mukesh Desai 19.33 15.02

Corporate Social Responsibility Exp
Sah Ka Mangal Ho Foundatian 25.20 39.33 - -

Sale / Redemption of Investment
Mr. Ashwin Dani / Mrs. Ina Dani - 1.00 - -

Loan Taken
Mr. Ashwin S. Dani - - - - - 0.60

Outstanding as at 31st March

Loan Payable
Mr. Ashwin Dani - - - - 4.80
Mrs. Ina A. Dani - - - - 0.20

Payable to Director
Mr. Ashwin 5. Dani - - 42.00 - - 1.00
Mrs. Ina A Dani - - 65.00 - -

Remuneration Payahble
Mr. Malav A. Dani - - 35.00 85.00 - -
M. Chirag Gosalia - - 1.84 - - -

Amount Payable
Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited - 110,10 - - - -
Asian Paints Limited - 12.71 - - - .

Amount Receivable
Asian Paints Limited 431.88 624.90 - - - -
Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited 10.55 1.28 - - - -
PP Asian Paints Private Limited 0.96 64.73 - - - -
Asian Paints FPG Private Limited 0.76 5.98 - - - -

Security Deposit {Asset)
Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited 75.00 75.00 - - - -

Security Deposit {Liability]
Sattva Holding & Trading Pvt Lid 18.00 18.00
Paladin Paints and Chemicals Private Limited 3.00 3.00 - - - -
Nete:

All Related Party Transactions entered during the current and previous year were in ordinary course of the business and on arm’s length basls.
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Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited
Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

47 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

{INR in lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

a} [Amount spent towards CSR by subsidiaries net of excess amount spent for the financial 67.20] 48.05
year INR Nil, Previous year INR 1.04 {acs

D} [Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 60.04 40.33

¢) |Related party transaction in relation to CSR Expenditure 25.20 3933

48 Information with regards to the following matters as specified In division 1ll of Schedule Il of The Companies Act, 2013.
i} The Group does not have any benami property held in their name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Parent and
. subsidiaries for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

{ii} The Group has not been deciared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government ar any government authority.

it} The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
{iv} The Group has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under section 2{87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies {Restriction on number of ayers) Rules, 2017.
v} Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
| The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party) with the understanding {whether
recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Company shall:
{2) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate
Beneficiaries) ar
{b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
Il The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate
Beneficiaries} or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{wi) The Group has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 [such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1951,

{wvii) The Group has not traded ar invested in Crypte currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

{wiii) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period as on
Balancesheet date.

(ix} The subsidiary company has working capital facilities sanctioned by bank on the basis of security of inventories and trade receivables. Quarterly
statements of current assets filed by the subsidiary with bank are in agreement with the books of accounts. The subsidiary company has not used
borrawings for purpose other than specified purpose of the borrowing.




Geetanijali Trading and investments Private Limited
Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

4%  Group entities that are not consolidated in the consolidated financial statements for year ended 31 March 2023.
{i) Name of the entity : Asian Paints Limited Resins and Plastic Limited Gujrat Organic Limited
«Type of business : The company is engaged in the The company is engaged in The company cerently an
business of manufacturing, selling |the business of manufacturing |Investment Company
and distribution of paints, coatings, | of synthetic resins
products related to home décor,
bath fittings and providing of
related services
*Size of assets : INR 22,52,954 Lakhs as at March  |INR 10,901 Lakhs as at March |INR 15,772 Lakhs as at
31, 2023 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
*Debt-equity ratio : Nil Nil Nil
+Profitability for the last two years : Profit for FY23 was Rs 4100.18 Profit for FY22 was Rs 11.82  |Profit for FY22 was Rs
crore crore 22.76 crare
Profit for FY22 was Rs 3134.71 Profit for FY21 was Rs 11,68  |Loss for FY21 was Rs 50.28
crore crore crore
{ii) Nature and type of exposure on each entity:
sInvestments in equity INR 1,16,735 Lakhs as at March 31, | INR 244 Lakhs as at March 31, [INR 0.04 Lakbs as at March
2023 2023 31, 2023
«Investments in convertibla instruments NiL NIL NIL
sInvestments in bonds/ debentures/ other |NiL MIL MIL
instruments
*Loans and advances NiL NIL NIL
«Any other NIL NIL NIL
(i} Total exposure of the CIC towards non- Investment by Geetanjali Holding &|Investment by Geetanjali Investment by Geetanjali
financial business (entity—wise) Trading Private Limited In Asian Holding & Trading Private Holding & Trading Private
Paints Limited is INR 1,156,735 Limited In Resins and Plastic is [Limited In Gujrat Organic
Lakhs INR 244 Lakhs Limited is {INR 0.04 lakhs
{iv) Loans and advances to firms/companies in  [NIL NIL NIL
which directors are interasted
) Investments by the loanee of the CIC in the |NiL MIL MIL
shares of parent company and group
cempanies
50 The Financial statements were approved for issue by the board of Directors on16th June, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of

Geetanjali Trading and Investments Private Limited

aodant

——

=4l

L
Ashwin 5. Dani

Director
DEN:00DD5126

W
Mukesh Desai

Chief Financial Qfficer

Place: Mumbai
Date; 16th June, 2023

’
Ina A, Dani
Directar
DIN; 00053695

A] .
ppi——
Namita Tiwari

Company Secretary






